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Hughes & Associates
Certified Public Accountants, P.C.

1321 D’Adrian Professional Park 618-466-6278
Godfrey, IL 62035 Fax 618-466-8663

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Granite City, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statésnefinthe governmental activities, the business-tgptivities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fafurnation of the City of Granite City, lllinois af and for the
year ended April 30, 2013, and the related notdhddinancial statements, which collectively corsprthe City’s
basic financial statements as listed in the tabtootents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statments

Management is responsible for the preparation aimgpfesentation of these financial statementsaoalance with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetééhBStates of America; this includes the desigmplémentation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant togteparation and fair presentation of financiatesteents that are
free from material misstatement, whether due todrar error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on thias@ncial statements based on our audit. We coeduatir audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally aecejpt the United States of America and the starsdapglicable

to financial audits contained iBovernment Auditing Sandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan afohpethe audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatdoether the
financial statements are free from material misstesnt.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidiaevidence about the amounts and disclosuréseifinancial
statements. The procedures selected depend oruthir&s judgment, including the assessment of rikks of
material misstatement of the financial statementsther due to fraud or error. In making those eskessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevanttiie entity’'s preparation and fair presentation fod financial
statements in order to design audit proceduresattigabppropriate in the circumstances, but notHerpurpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thityés internal control. Accordingly, we express such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatenef accounting policies used and the reasonaddené
significant accounting estimates made by manageraenwell as evaluating the overall presentatiotheffinancial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaisexlifficient and appropriate to provide a basisdur audit
opinions.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Note Disclosures
The City has omitted disclosures required by Gowemtal Accounting Standards Bodstement 45 Accounting

and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The amount by which this disclosure
would affect the financial statements is not reabbndeterminable.



Qualified Opinions

In our opinion, except for the effects of the ordas described in the preceding paragraph, thediahstatements
referred to above present fairly, in all materiabpects, the respective financial position of tleegnmental
activities, business-type activities, each majordfuand the aggregate remaining fund informationhef City of

Granite City, lllinois, as of April 30, 2013, anklet respective changes in financial position ancerestapplicable,
cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in @onity with accounting principles generally accepia the

United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in thetkhiStates of America require that the budgetamparison

information (pages 39 to 42) and schedules of fuypgirogress and employer contributions (pages 484jobe

presented to supplement the basic financial statemeSuch information, although not part of theibdinancial

statements, is required by the Governmental Acéogr8tandards Board, who considers it to be améiss@art of

financial reporting for placing the basic financ&htements in an appropriate operational, econoonibistorical

context. We have applied certain limited proceduoethe required supplementary information in adeoce with

auditing standards generally accepted in the Urittades of America, which consisted of inquiriest@nagement
about the methods of preparing the information emiparing the information for consistency with mgement’s

responses to our inquiries, the basic financidkestants, and other knowledge we obtained duringaadit of the

basic financial statements. We do not expresspamian or provide any assurance on the informakienause the
limited procedures do not provide us with suffitiemidence to express an opinion or provide anyrasge.

Management has not presented the Management’'s$3iscuand Analysis that governmental accountingcgples
generally accepted in the United States of Amermguire to be presented to supplement the basandial
statements. Such missing information, although angdart of the basic financial statements, is regliby the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who cenmsidt to be an essential part of financial repartfor
placing the basic financial statements in an apjtgoperational, economic, or historical cont@air opinion on
the basic financial statements is not affectedhiy/missing information.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forndpmions on the financial statements that colledyivcomprise
the City of Granite City, lllinois’ basic financiatatements as a whole. The combining financatkstents and
schedules are presented for purposes of additianalysis and are not a required part of the bas@n€ial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of fedevaids, notes to the schedule of expendituresdsral awards,
and schedule of findings and questioned costs r@septed for purposes of additional analysis asired) by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-13®udits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic firdstatements.

The combining financial statements and scheduldstlaem schedule of expenditures of federal awardgsnto the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, anddidh of findings and questioned costs are theoresbility of
management and were derived from and related Hirezxtthe underlying accounting and other recordeduto
prepare the basic financial statements. Such irdtom has been subjected to the auditing procedippbed in the
audit of the financial statements and certain &bl procedures, including comparing and recongilsuch
information directly to the underlying accountingdaother records used to prepare the financiasiamts or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additiprocedures in accordance with auditing standgederally
accepted in the United States of America. In qunion, the combining financial statements and dales and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards aré/faiated in all material respects in relationhe basic financial
statements as a whole.

We have also issued our report dated December @8, n the City of Granite City, lllinois’ comptiae with
State of Illinois Public Act 85-1142 (page 53). Tin@rpose of that report is to describe the scopauotesting on
compliance with Subsection (q) of lllinois Compilettatutes 65 of (ILCS) 5/11-74.4-3 of the lllinoi¥ax
Increment Redevelopment Allocation Act (lllinoiskitia Act 85-1142).



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witlGovernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Decembe2dg, on
our consideration of the City of Granite City, filiis’ internal control over financial reporting aad our test of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regiaias, contracts, and grant agreements and othdemnat The
purpose of that report is to describe the scop®uwftesting of internal control over financial refiog and
compliance and the results of that testing, andam@trovide an opinion on internal control overafirtial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral @dran audit performed in accordance wibvernment Auditing

Sandards in considering the City of Granite City, lllinoigiternal control over financial reporting and cdiapce.

« Qovuoio 008 PL.

Hughes & Associates, CPA, P.C.
December 18, 2013



Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Certificates of Deposit
Restricted Investments

Investments

CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
APRIL 30, 2013

Receivables (Net of Allowance

for Uncollectibles)

Internal Advances to Other Funds

Prepaid Expenses and Deposits
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

General Real Estate Investment

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Workman's Compensation
Accrued Vacation Leave
Accrued Interest Payable
Other Accrued Obligations
Deferred Gain on Sale
Deferred Real Estate Taxes

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Accrued Sick Leave
Net Pension Obligation
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted for:
Debt Service

Development Loans
Drug Traffic Prevention
Redevelopment

Unrestricted:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
$ 756,677 $ 904,165 $ 1,660,842
1,229,253 796,467 2,025,720
3,050,773 1,340,185 4,390,958
230,211 183,727 413,938
18,366,860 2,028,743 20,395,603
(126,587) 126,587 -
220,605 45,606 266,211
23,727,792 5,425,480 29,153,272
1,385,076 - 1,385,076
48,796,435 29,895,028 78,691,463
50,181,511 29,895,028 80,076,539
73,909,303 35,320,508 109,229,811
LIABILITIES
744,552 2,375,039 3,119,591
2,346,994 - 2,346,994
664,332 118,583 782,915
241,158 65,496 306,654
22,760 - 22,760
173,033 - 173,033
14,337,437 - 14,337,437
Bonds/Notes Payable - Current Portion (Net of Unamortized Costs) 1,113,606 723,814 1,837,420
19,643,872 3,282,932 22,926,804
Bonds/Notes Payable - Noncurrent Portion (net of Unamortized Costs) 16,759,765 13,988,471 30,748,236
2,599,254 206,462 2,805,716
20,453,459 - 20,453,459
39,812,478 14,194,933 54,007,411
59,456,350 17,477,865 76,934,215
NET POSITION

30,923,064 15,182,743 46,105,807
2,461,269 - 2,461,269
300,537 - 300,537
65,998 - 65,998
4,955,484 1,340,185 6,295,669
(24,253,399) 1,319,715 (22,933,684)
$ 14,452,953 $ 17,842,643 $ 32,295,596

Total Net Position

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Cinema
Public Safety
Public Works
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Wastewater
Total Business-Type Activities
Total

CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changesin Net Position

Operating Capita
Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
$10,006,311 $ 1095286 $ 706514 $ - $ (8,204,511) - $ (8,204,511)
572,711 579,765 - - 7,054 - 7,054
18,638,294 1,590,178 531,144 - (16,516,972) - (16,516,972)
5,552,505 515,576 792,337 254,396 (3,990,196) - (3,990,196)
1,180,906 - - - (1,180,906) - (1,180,906)
35,950,727 3,780,805 2,029,995 254,396 (29,885,531) - (29,885,531)
6,319,796 7,012,029 - 311,861 - 1,004,094 1,004,094
6,319,796 7,012,029 - 311,861 - 1,004,094 1,004,094
$42,270523 $10,792834 $ 2,029,995 $ 566,257 (29,885,531) 1,004,094 (28,881,437)
General Revenues.
Property Tax, Levied for General Purposes 15,064,514 - 15,064,514
Home Rule Sales Tax 2,842,174 - 2,842,174
Sales and Use Tax 4,038,785 - 4,038,785
Replacement Tax 2,548,774 - 2,548,774
State Income Tax 2,824,237 - 2,824,237
Telecommunications Tax 1,124,335 - 1,124,335
Other State and Local Taxes 57,850 - 57,850
Investment Earnings 93,600 63,539 157,139
Miscellaneous 1,322,221 - 1,322,221
Total Genera Revenues and Transfers 29,916,490 63,539 29,980,029
Loss on Refinancing - -
Changein Net Position 30,959 1,067,633 1,098,592
Net Position - Beginning 15,016,836 16,620,269 31,637,105
Restatement of Beginning - Net Position (Note 22) (594,842) (151,088) (745,930)
Net Position - Ending $ 14,452,953 $ 17,536,814 $ 31,989,767

See accompanying notes to the basic financia statements.



CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

APRIL 30, 2013
Total
Tax Increment Non-Major Total
General Financing Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1765 $ 579319 $ 175593 $ 756,677
Restricted Investments - 3,050,773 - 3,050,773
Certificates of Deposit 3,669 1,190,837 34,747 1,229,253
Investments 359 116,454 113,398 230,211
Receivables (Net of Allowances
for Uncollectibles):
Property Taxes 5,453,461 8,883,976 - 14,337,437
Intergovernmental 3,045,867 173,640 64,387 3,283,894
Other 438,094 307,435 - 745,529
Due from Other Funds 4,047,158 2,760 10,484 4,060,402
Prepaid Expenses 220,605 - - 220,605
Rental Real Estate Investment - 2,667,631 - 2,667,631
General Real Estate Investment - 1,385,076 - 1,385,076
Total Assets 13,210,978 18,357,901 398,609 31,967,438
LIABILITIESAND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 528,141 8,142 208,269 744,552
Accrued Employee Obligations 2,346,994 - - 2,346,994
Dueto Other Funds 339,042 1,572,700 2,275,247 4,186,989
Other Accrued Obligations 20,000 2,760 - 22,760
Deferred Gain on Sale - 173,033 - 173,033
Deferred Revenue 6,614,497 8,883,976 - 15,498,473
Total Liabilities 9,848,674 10,640,611 2,483,516 22,972,801
Fund Balance:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses 220,605 - - 220,605
Restricted for:
Redevel opment - 4,955,484 - 4,955,484
Development Loans - 300,537 - 300,537
Drug Traffic Prevention - - 65,998 65,998
Debt Service - 2,461,269 - 2,461,269
Unassigned 3,141,699 - (2,150,905) 990,794
Total Fund Balance 3,362,304 7,717,290 (2,084,907) 8,994,687
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $13,210978 $ 18,357,901 $ 398609 $ 31,967,488

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental fund balances are different because:
Fund Balances - total governmental funds $ 8,994,687

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported on the balance sheet of the governmental funds. 48,796,435

Rental Real Estate Investments are recorded as capital assets and depreciated
and not maintained as investment real estate. (2,667,631)

The amount of compensated absences is not recorded as a liability on the
balance sheet of the governmental funds. (3,263,586)

Long-term debt (e.g., bonds, net of unamortized costs, notes payable, capital
leases) is not reported as a liability on the balance sheet of the governmental (20,296,336)

Net pension obligations are not reported as a liability on the balance sheet of the
governmental funds. (20,453,459)

Accrued interest payable on the long-term debt is not reported as a liability on
the balance shest of the governmental funds. (241,158)

The governmental funds report deferred amount on refunding of bonds are not
reported on the balance sheet of the governemtnal funds. 2,422,965

The governmental funds report deferred revenue when reported assets are not
available to pay current liabilities. The statement of activities eliminates
deferred revenue related to state and local salestaxes. 1,161,036

Net position of governmental activities $ 14,452,953

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

Revenues:
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental:
Home Rule Sales Tax
Sales and Use Tax
Replacement Tax
State Income Tax
Motor Fuel Tax
Telecommunications Tax
Grants
Other
Other Local Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeits
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Cinema
Public Safety
Public Works
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Bond Issuance Costs
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Refunding Bonds Issued
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent
Bond Premium
Operating Transfers In (Out)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

Total

Tax Increment Non-Major Tota
General Financing Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 6551072 $ 8513442 $ - $ 15,064,514
2,824,413 - - 2,824,413
3,881,505 137,540 - 4,019,045
2,548,774 - - 2,548,774
3,114,683 - - 3,114,683
- - 792,337 792,337
1,128,018 - - 1,128,018
534,260 - 745,264 1,279,524
426,959 - - 426,959
57,850 - - 57,850
734,362 - - 734,362
2,349,294 - - 2,349,294
446,422 - 30,307 476,729
54,005 39,286 309 93,600
1,017,854 302,617 1,750 1,322,221
25,669,471 8,992,885 1,569,967 36,232,323
3,794,555 5,447,777 195,941 9,438,273
572,711 - - 572,711
14,663,705 - 186,759 14,850,464
4,570,643 - 706,479 5,277,122
- 1,185,000 582,316 1,767,316
- 1,314,217 59,850 1,374,067
- 351,609 - 351,609
- 397,878 196,820 594,698
23,601,614 8,696,481 1,928,165 34,226,260
2,067,857 296,404 (358,198) 2,006,063
122,471 9,820,000 - 9,942,471
- (10,977,265) - (10,977,265)
- 186,580 - 186,580
(326,182) (216,772) 542,954 -
(203,711) (1,187,457) 542,954 (848,214)
1,864,146 (891,053) 184,756 1,157,849
1,498,158 8,608,343 (2,269,663) 7,836,838
$ 3362304 $ 7,717,290 $ (2,084,907) $ 8,994,687
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSTO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the statement of activities are

different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital
assets for which funds were expended this year.

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government-wide
statement of activities and changes in net assets, but they do not require the use of
current financial resources. Therefore depreciation expense is not reported as an
exnenditure in the aovernmental funds

The amount of compensated absences is not recorded as expense in the fund
financial statements. In the statement of activities, these amounts are included
and recorded currently in the various functional expense categories. This amount
is the difference between beginning and ending compensated absences balance
that has been included in the gatement of activities

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-
term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transactions, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs premiums, discounts and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in
the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in
the treatment of lona-term deht

Interest accrued but not paid is not recorded as an expense until paid. Thisisthe
changein accrued interest payable between years.

Net pension obligations are reported in the government-wide statement of
activities and changes in net assets, but do not require the use of current financial
resources; therefore, net pension obligations are not reported as expenditures in
aovernmental fuinds Thisisthe channein the net nension ohliaation hetween

The governmental funds report deferred revenue when reported assets are not
available to pay current liabilities. The statement of activities eliminates deferred
revenue related to state and local sales taxes. This is the difference of deferred
revenue for the sales and use tax from the beginning and end of the year.

1,157,849

1,063,713

(1,223,561)

(18,205)

2,489,541

193,161

(3,380,902)

(250,637)

Change in net position of governmental activities $

30,959

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Certificates of Deposit
Restricted Investments
Investments
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance

for Uncoallectibles)
Grant Receivable
Due To Other Funds
Interest Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Construction in Process
Building and Improvements
Treatment Facility and Lines
Equipment
Vehicles

Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Capital Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Vacation Leave
Dueto Other Funds
Accrued Interest
Bonds/Notes Payable - Current Portion
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Sick Leave
Bonds/Notes Payable - Non Current Portion
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt

Restricted for:
Redevel opment

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

APRIL 30, 2013

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

10

Business Type
Activities

Enterprise Funds
Wastewater

$ 904,165

796,467
1,340,185
183,727

1,783,797
239,956
200,344

4,990
45,606

5,499,237

15,964,147
1,742,561
33,885,650
1,780,480
1,275,740

54,648,578
(24,753,550)

29,895,028

35,394,265

2,375,039
118,583
73,757
65,496
723,814

3,356,689

206,462
13,988,471

14,194,933

17,551,622

15,182,743

1,340,185
1,319,715

$ 17,842,643




CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personal Services
Industrial Pretreatment
Billings and Collection
Sewer Collection
Solids Handling
BOD Treatment
Primary Treatment
General and Administration
Dry Weather Pumping
Wet Weather Pumping
Other
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating (L0ss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Earnings
Grant Income
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning
Restatement of Beginning - Net Position (Note 22)

Net Position - Ending

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Business Type

Activities

Enterprise Fund

$

Wastewater

7,012,029

7,012,029

2,753,296
98,340
122,915
797,358
551,713
224,660
31,662
212,462
173,727
102,611
167,320
811,103

6,047,167

964,862

63,539
533,502
(272,629)

324,412

1,289,274
16,620,269

(151,088)

$

17,758,455




CITY OF GRANITECITY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Paid to Suppliersfor Goods and Services
Cash Paid to Employees for Services
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Grant Revenue Received
Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Proceeds From Borrowings
Principal Paid on Borrowings
Interest Paid on Borrowings
Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds From Sale of Investments
Purchase of Investments
Advances to Other Funds
Investment Earnings

Net Cash (Used) By Investing Activities

Net Decrease In Cash and Equivalents
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Equivalents - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided By Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase in Accounts Receivable
Increase in Prepaid Expenses
(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase in Other Liabilities

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Business Type
Activities

Enterprise Fund
Wastewater

$ 6,872,463
(2,370,143)
(2,738,110)

1,764,210

377,734

377,734

(9,313,509)
5,642,869
(411,770)
(245,720)

(4,328,130

495,280

1,559,897
71,412

2,126,589

(59,597)

963,762

$ 904,165

$ 964,862

811,103

(139,566)
(1,322)
113,947
15,186

$ 1,764,210




CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF PLAN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - PENSION TRUST FUNDS

APRIL 30, 2013
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 592,706
Investments and Certificates of Deposit 30,796,272
Receivables:
Property Taxes 1,477,712
Gaming Taxes 11,020
Accrued Interest 96,795
Total Assets 32,974,505
LIABILITIES

Liabilities -
Total Liabilities -

NET POSITION
Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits $32,974,505

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - PENSION TRUST FUNDS

APRIL 30, 2013

Additions:
Contributions:

Employee Contributions

Employer Contributions:
Property Taxes
Gaming Taxes
Replacement Taxes

Total Contributions

Investment Income:
Interest and Dividends
Net Realized/Unrealized Gain on Investments

Less: Investment Expense
Net Investment Income

Total Additions
Deductions:
Benefits Paid to Participants:
Service and Disability
Dependents
Contractual Services
Total Deductions
Change in Plan Net Position
Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits, Beginning of Y ear

Net Position Held in Trust for Pension Benefits, End of Y ear

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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$ 751,268

1,472,876
19,918
529,395

2,773,457

1,048,971
1,552,207

2,601,178
(96,022)

2,505,156

5,278,613

4,143,264
525,086
31,642

4,699,992

578,621

32,395,884

$ 32,974,505




CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Granite City, lllinois (the City) wasdorporated March 9, 1896 under the provisionsaof 4ct to
provide for the incorporation of cities and villaje The City is a Home Rule Unit under the prowisdf Article

7 of the lllinois Constitution of 1970. The Cityperates under the aldermanic-city form of governnserd
provides the following services as authorized kg éharter: public improvements, planning and zgnin
wastewater treatment and general administrativecess.

The financial statements of the City of GraniteyCjgovernment) have been prepared in conformityh wit

accounting principles generally accepted in thetéshiStates of America (GAAP) as applied to govemmme

units. The Governmental Accounting Standards BA&@ASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financigorting principles. The more significant of the
government’s accounting policies are describedvielo

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City's financial statements include the acceunit all City operations. The criteria for includi
organizations as component units within the Citséporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of
GASB's Cadification of Governmental Accounting afithancial Reporting Standardaclude whether:

e The organization is legally separate (can sue amslied in their own name)

e The City holds the corporate powers of the orgdituna

» The City appoints a voting majority of the orgatiaa’'s board

» The City is able to impose its will on the orgariaa

* The organization has the potential to impose anfifed benefit/burden on the City
» There is fiscal dependency by the organizatiorhenQity

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Cityrftasomponent units.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. slaéement of net position and the statement afighs

in net position) report information on all of thenfiduciary activities of the government. For thest
part, the effect of interfund activity has been osed from these statements. Governmental ac8yitie
which normally are supported by taxes and interguwental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a signifitaxtent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the deigreehich the direct expenses of a given function o

segment is offset by program revenues. Direct esg® are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenuesudtec 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, sewvior privileges provided by a given function or

segment and 2) grants and contributions that astricked to meeting the operational or capital

requirements of a particular function or segmemaxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as gengesiues.

Separate financial statements are provided for gowental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciarydsin
even though the latter are excluded from the gawent-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterpfiseds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and FinaB8teéiement Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Satements

The government-wide financial statements are repousing the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are theriptary fund and fiduciary fund financial statertgen
Revenues are recorded when earned and expensexaréed when a liability is incurred, regardleés o
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxesracognized as revenues in the year for which dne
levied. Grants and similar items are recognizereasnue as soon as all eligibility requirementposed

by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are repousgdg the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accountiRgvenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are consideriee &vailable when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to payiliies of the current period. For this purposiee
government generally considers revenues to beadlailf they are collected within 60 days of thel ef

the current fiscal period. Expenditures generaitly recorded when a liability is incurred, as uratmrual
accounting. However, debt service expendituresyedkas expenditures related to compensated absenc
and claims and judgments are recorded only whempayis due.

Property taxes, intergovernmental taxes, licensesimterest associated with the current fiscalquedre

all considered to be susceptible to accrual ane heen recognized, when applicable, as revenute of
current fiscal period. All other revenue items aomsidered to be measurable and available onlynwhe
the government receives cash.

The major sources of revenue for the special reydnnds are: Motor Fuel Tax Fund is motor fuel axe
TIF Fund is real estate taxes, Community DevelopngrmMadison County Community Development
funds, and Drug Traffic Prevention is fines anddiures and federal drug funds.

The government reports the following major governtakfunds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary opagdtind. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those requirdxe taccounted for in another fund.

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund accounts for the taxes i@ithbursements received and amounts paid
related to streets and highways.

The Tax Increment Financing Fund accounts for imenetal taxes and other revenues as well as all
expenses related to improvements and promotiorsis ecelated to the tax increment financing areas.

The government reports the following major protanig funds:
The Wastewater Treatment Plant and Sewer SysterteyfdEise Funds account for all activities
related to the billing, administration, and distition and collection processes of the wastewater
treatment plant. The City operates the sewagentesg plant, sewage pumping stations and
collection systems.

Additionally, the government reports the followifiguciary fund type:

The Pension Trust Funds account for the activifehe police and firemen’s’ pension funds, which
accumulate resources for pension benefit paymerdsdlified public safety employees.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Private-sector standards of accounting and finnegorting issued prior to December 1, 1989, galher
are followed in both the government-wide and pretary fund financial statements to the extent that
those standards do not conflict with or contradjetdance of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board. Governments also have the option of foll@vsubsequent private-sector guidance for their
business-type activities and enterprise funds,exitip this same limitation. The government hasted

to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activiigs been eliminated from the government-wide fir@n
statements. Exceptions to this general rule d@nebrrsements between funds for direct costs appkca
to the other fund. Elimination of these chargeaulodistort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include Igekao customers or applicants for goods, services
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants andtgbations, and 3) capital grants and contribution,
including special assessments. Internally dedicegsources are reported as general revenues thgrer

as program revenues. Likewise, general revenwhsde all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenued arpenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from proyidervices and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongg operations. The principal operating revenues o
the City’s enterprise fund are charges to custorf@rsales and services. The City also recognizes
operating revenue the portion of tap on fees irgdnt recover the cost of connecting new custorteers
the system. Operating expenses for enterprisesfimaude the cost of services, administrative esps
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenuesexpenses not meeting this definition are repoate
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity

Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considereée& cash on hand, demand deposits, certificdHtes
deposits and short-term investments with originakturities of three months or less. Short-termhcas
surpluses are generally maintained in sweep acsaouithe individual funds.

The City is authorized by state statute to invasbliligations of the United States of America, nesl
interest bearing accounts of banks, savings and &ssociation or credit unions, certain short-term
obligations of corporations organized in the Unitethtes, money market mutual funds that invest in
obligations of the United State of America or iteeacies or are guaranteed by the full faith anditief

the United States of America, the lllinois Fundd agpurchase agreements of government securifies.
Pension Trust Funds are also allowed to investdidnpercentages of their monies in mutual funds and
equity securities.

The lllinois Funds is an investment pool managedhaylllinois Public Treasurer’s Office which allew
governments within the State to pool their fundsifwestment purposes. Although not registeredh wit
SEC, lllinois Funds operates in a manner consistétiit rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of
1940. Investments in lllinois Funds are valuethatshare price, the price for which the investnoenid

be sold. Sedttp://www.treasurer.il.gov/programsl/illinois-furidbout-illinois-funds.aspfor information
on the lllinois Funds.

Fixed-income securities are recorded in all fundda& value. Investment income is recognized as
earned. Gains or losses on sales and exchangégedfincome securities are recognized on the
transaction date.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representativieodling/borrowing arrangements outstanding atetia

of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/fratimer funds”. Any residual balances outstandingvben
the governmental activities and business-type itietivare reported in the government-wide financial
statements as “internal advances to other funds.”

The primary purpose of these interfund receivahled payables is to provide temporary loans for cash
flow needs; all amounts are expected to be repafdnthe next fiscal year.

All intergovernmental and property tax receivablee shown net of an allowance for uncollectible
amounts. All accounts receivable related to theerpnise fund are shown at net of an allowance for
uncollectible accounts based on management’s dstiofizollectability.

Unbilled sewer utility receivables related to thesimess-type activities are recorded at year-aitky are
determined by taking cycle billings subsequent ilA30 and prorating the applicable number of deays
the current fiscal year.

The City levied its property taxes in December 20ddsed upon the expected assessed valuatiortlaes of
January 1, 2013. Property taxes are due in fasmaliments in the following year, and are considere
delinquent after the due dates. Property taxe2@d4d become an enforceable lien in January 20t®
County has not mailed tax bills as of April 30, 304nd past mailing practices of the County have
generally been subsequent to April 30 of each yeHne City receives significant distributions ok ta
receipts beginning in late June or early July ahegear.

At fiscal year-end, the receivables represent 2@%2s to be collected between June and January. 2013
Taxes collected during the current year were froen2011 tax levy.

Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applkcablfuture accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaid items in both government-wide and fundrfaial statements.

Inventories
Inventory has not been recorded in the General F8pdcial Revenue Funds or Enterprise Funds. This
cost is recorded as an expenditure and chargepei@iions at the time the items are purchased.

Investment in Real Estate

Through the use of tax increment financing, they @ais purchased several parcels of land to befbeld
resale to developers or individuals in an effortteate future economic growth within the tax imeeat
financing areas of the City.

In addition, the City has certain parcels of immdvand unimproved real estate, which are rented to
businesses within the tax increment financing areas

Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include property, buildingguipment and vehicles, are reported in the aggkca

governmental-type or business-type activities caisiim the government-wide financial statementse Th
government defines capital assets as assets withital, individual cost of more than $5,000 and a

estimated useful life in excess of two years. Sasbets are recorded at historical cost and estiimat
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Dedatapital assets are recorded at estimated fakema

value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs thaiotl@add to the value of the asset or materialte ek
assets lives are not capitalized.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Major outlays for capital assets and improvemengscapitalized as projects when constructed. dster
incurred during the construction phase of capiak#s of business-type activities is included asgiahe
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are dejated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Improvements 20 -75
Treatment Facilit 20 - 5(
Equipmen 5-1¢
Vehicles 5-1C

Amortization
Bond issuance cost are capitalized and amortizedtbe life of the bond.

Compensated Absences

Under terms of the various City ordinances and tiatgal contracts, City employees are granted vacati
based on continuous employment service. Employeeations vest as of their anniversary date.
Employees are entitled to sick leave based on aaeghlmonths of service. The City’s policies and
negotiated contract provisions regarding sick legermit employees to accumulate a maximum
accumulation of sick leave, usually ninety daysie Tity cancels accumulated sick leave on the ofate
employee termination except in the case of qudlifietirement or employee death wherein 50% of the
accumulated sick leave is paid.

At April 30, 2013, the City estimated that the aocuated liability for unused vacation and sick ledor
governmental fund employees totaled $664,332 anf99259, respectively. Amounts reflected in the
financial statements at April 30, 2013 for entesprfund employees related to unused vacation a&hd si
leave benefits totaled $118,583 and $206,462, ctispdy.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, arappetary fund types in the fund financial statetsen
long-term debt and other long-term obligations @gorted as liabilities in the applicable governtaén
activities, business-type activities, or proprigtamd type statement of net position. Bond prenswand
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are defamddamortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are tegonet of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred changeamortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental ftypes recognize bond premiums and discounts, Hs we
as bond issuance costs, during the current peridte face amount of debt issued is reported ag othe
financing sources. Premiums received on debt memsaare reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as dtlagicing uses. Issuance costs, whether or nothelith
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reppatalebt service expenditures.

Net Position

Net position represent the difference between ssaed liabilities. Invested in capital assets, ofet
related debt consists of capital assets (net ofiraatated depreciation) reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowing used for the acquisit@mstruction, or improvements of those assets, and
adding back unspent proceeds. Net positions @ated as restricted when there are limitationsoisel

on their use either through the enabling legistatimlopted by the City through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulatiohsther governments. The City first applies exqges

to restricted positions when both restricted anekstnicted positions are available.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The following are descriptions and amounts of eflerves and designations recorded by the Citydn th
fund financial statements:

Governmental Funds

Restricted for Debt Service $ 2,461,269
Restricted for Development Loans 300,537
Restricted for Drug Traffic Prevention 65,998
Restricted for Redevelopment 6,295,669

Fiduciary Funds
Reserved for Employees' Pension Benefits  $ 32,974,505

Fund Balances

Fund balances are divided into five classificatjoas presented in the financial statements, based
primarily on the extent to which the City is boutadobserve constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the governmental funds. The clastifica are as follows:

Nonspendable- The nonspendable fund balance category incliadesunts that cannot be spent
because they are not in spendable form, or legaligontractually required to be maintained intact.
The “not in spendable form” criterion includes i®that are not expected to be converted to cash. It
also includes the long-term amount of any interflozhs.

Restricted- Fund balance is reported as restricted whenticonis placed on the use of resources are
either externally imposed by creditors (such asubh debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or is isgabby law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislations, such as City ordinances.

Enabling legislation authorized the City to assésey, charge, or otherwise mandates payment of
resources (from external resource providers) adddes a legally enforceable requirement that those
resources be used only for the specific purpospsiated in the legislation. Legal enforceability
means that the City can be compelled by an ext@ardy, such as citizens, public interest groups, o
the judiciary system to use resources created bplieny legislation only for the purposes specified
by legislation.

Committed— The committed fund balance classification inel@mounts that can be used only for
the specific purposes imposed by formal actionhsag an ordinance or resolution, of the City’s
council. Those committed amounts cannot be usedrigrother purpose unless the City’s council
removes or changes the specified use by takings#éinee type of action, such as an ordinance or
resolution; it employed to previously commit thosmounts. In contrast to fund balance that is
restricted by enabling legislation, committed furalance classification may be redeployed for other
purposes with appropriate due process. Constraimiesed on the use of committed amounts are
imposed by City council, separate from the autlatidn to raise the underlying revenue: therefore,
compliance with these constraints is not considdmde legally enforceable. Committed fund
balance also incorporates contractual obligatiorthé extent that existing resources in the funcgeha
been specifically committed for use in satisfyihgde contractual requirements. The City currently
has no committed fund balances.

Assigned— Amounts in the assigned fund balance classifinadre intended to be used by the City
for specific purposes but do not meet the critéoicbe classified as restricted or committed. In
governmental funds other than the General Fundgress fund balance represents the remaining
amount that is not restricted or committed. In@eneral Fund, assigned amounts represent intended
uses established by City council or a City offidalegated that authority by City ordinance. Thigy Ci
currently has no assigned fund balances.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Unassigned- Unassigned fund balance is the residual classidin for the General Fund and includes
all spendable amounts not contained in the othessdications. In other governmental funds, the
unassigned classification is used only to repodeécit balance resulting from overspending for
specific purposes for which amounts had been oéstti committed, or assigned.

The City applies restricted resources first whepeexlitures are incurred for purposes for whichegith
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, amassigned) amounts are available. Similarlyhiwit
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts ateaed first followed by assigned, and then unassign
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purpfigeshich amounts in any of the unrestricted fund
balance classifications could be used.

Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in migphese financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the téthiStates of America. These estimates and
assumptions affect the reported amounts of asseds liabilities and the reported revenues and
expenditures. Actual results could vary from eaties that were used.

Advertising

Advertising costs of the City are expensed as neclr

NOTE 2. BUDGETARY AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Each

year the City Comptroller submits to the @iyuncil a proposed operating budget for the Gerfenad

and the Capital Projects Fund for the fiscal yeanmencing May 1. The operating budgets includepsed
expenditures and the means of financing them. Hindgets are legally enacted by ordinance afteripubl
hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. uinbudgets for Special Revenue Funds are not forma
adopted by ordinance at the beginning of the figealr, but are approved throughout the fiscal yaformal
resolution of the City Council or by City Councparoval for the payment of expenditures. Operationthese
funds are controlled by project budgets.

The City follows these procedures in establishimgliudgetary data reflected in the financial stetes

Prior to July 31, the City Comptroller submits ke tCity Council a proposed operating budget for the
General Fund and the Capital Projects Fund forRiseal year commencing May 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the nudédimancing them.

A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayeno®nts.

Prior to August 1, the budget is legally enactedugh passage of an ordinance.

The City Comptroller is authorized to transfer betgl amounts between departments within any fund;
however, any revisions that alter the total expemds of any fund must be approved by the City
Council.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a mamagt control device during the year for the

General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and the Cépitgdcts Fund. Formal budgetary integration is
not employed for the Debt Service Fund becausetafée budgetary control is alternatively achieved

through general obligation bond indenture provision

Budgets for all funds are adopted on the cash baB@ financial statement presentation, budgeted
amounts are also presented on the cash basis.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

NOTE 2. BUDGETARY AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE (Continued)
The major differences between the budgetary and BBasis of accounting are:

* Revenues are recorded when received in cash (lugyes opposed to when they are measurable
and available (GAAP).

e Expenditures are recorded when paid or when alitialtias been incurred which has been
budgeted to be paid with expendable financial resesu (budgetary), as opposed to when the
obligation is incurred (GAAP).

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

General Government and Business-Like Activities

At April 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the Cgydeposits was $6,506,624 and the bank balance was
$6,506,624. Additionally, the City has $303,938ested in the lllinois Funds at year-end. The dé@pavere
comprised of checking, interest checking, savingsney market and certificates of deposit.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the evehta bank failure, the City’'s deposits may notrerirned to it.
The City requires that all deposits be fully cowkby FDIC insurance or collateralized with investiseheld by
the financial institution in the City’s name. ABApril 30, 2013, all of the deposits of the Cityexe covered by
FDIC insurance or collateralized by the financratitution.

For an investment, this is the risk that in thend\a the failure of the counterparty, the City Iwibt
be able to recover the value of its investmentsafiiteral securities that are in the possessioanof
outside party. The City’s investment policy regdirthat all investments in excess of insurancddimi
be collateralized. At year-end, the City’s investinin the lIllinois Funds is not subject to cusabdi
credit risk.

As of April 30, 2013 the City had the following iestments:

Weighted Average

Investment Maturity (Years) Cost Fair Value
The lllinois Funds (external investment pool) - $ 3BB9 $ 303,938
Corporate Bonds 5.99 496,000 496,000
Repurchase Agreements - 111,904 111,904
UMB Money Market - 1,072,992 1,072,992
Total Investmen $ 1,984,83. 1,984,83
Deposits as Reported Above 6,506,624
Total Deposits and Investme $ 8,491,45

As Reported in the Statement of Net Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,660,842
Certificates of Deposit 3,108,001
Restricted Investments 3,308,677
Investments 413,938

$ 8,491,45
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTSGontinued)

Interest Rate Risk
The City’s investment policy limits investment maties in order to maintain sufficient liquidity teflect the

cash flow needs of the fund type being investede Policy also requires diversification of the istraent
portfolio via length of maturity as a means of nging its exposure to fair value losses arising fiooreasing
interest rates.

Credit Risk
As of April 30, 2013, the credit rating of the Ctynvestment was as follows:

Standard & Moody's Investors
Investment Poor's Rating Service Rating

The lllinois Funds (external investment pool) AAAM -
Corporate Bonds - -

Concentration of Credit Risk
As of April 30, 2013, the City’s investments aregicentrated as follows:

Investment Percentage
Corporate Bonds 2.50%
UMB Money Market 54.06%

Foreign Currency Risk
As of April 30, 2013, the City did not have foreigarrency risk.

Fire Pension Fund
At April 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the FRension Fund’s deposits was $235,316 and the balakde

was $237,882. The deposits were comprised ofastehecking, money market and certificates of diepo

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the eveht bank failure, the Fire Pension’s deposits matybe returned
to it. The Fire Pension requires that all depolisfully covered by FDIC insurance or collateradizwith
investments held by the financial institution i thire Pension Fund’s name.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTSGontinued)

As of April 30, 2013, the City’s Fire Pension Fumad the following investments:

Weighted Average

Investment Maturity (Years) Cost Fair Value

Federal Home Loan Bank 1.82 $ 75,084 $ 78,459
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 9.54 612,337 620,585
Federal National Mortgage Association 9.48 321,508 320,122
Federal National Mortgage Association REMIC 9.7 5,099 5,325
Freddoe Mac 12.66 168,066 167,466
Governmental National Mortgage Association 16.29 3,265 1,200,527
U.S. V.A. REMIC 15.51 64,953 72,599
U.S. Treasury Notes 5.61 375,911 406,198
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation 3.04 253,08 276,285
Municipal Bonds 7.18 80,000 81,282
Corporate Bonds 477 1,837,817 1,859,631
Fixed Income Funds - 813,066 853,137
Money Market Mutual Funds - 391,941 391,941
Common Stock - 5,798,138 7,609,324
Mutual Funds -- 1,497,698 1,867,332

Total Investmen $ 13,446,96 15,810,21
Deposits as Reported Above 235,316
Total Deposits and Investme $ 16,045,52

As Reported in the Combining Statement of Fiducldey Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 235,316
Investments and Certificates of Deposit 15,810,213
_$ 1604552

Interest Rate Risk

The Fire Pension Fund’s investment policy limitgdstment maturities in order to maintain sufficiéquidity
to reflect the cash flow needs of the fund typenbgenvested. The policy also requires diversifaatof the
investment portfolio via length of maturity as aane of managing its exposure to fair value lossistng from

increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

As of April 30, 2013, the Fire Pension Fund’s inwesnts credit ratings were as follows:

Investment Poor's Rating Service Rating
Federal Home Loan Bank AA+ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation AA+ Not Avaliéa
Federal National Mortgage Association Not Available aaA
Federal National Mortgage Association REMIC Not Aable Not Available
Freddie Mac Not Available Not Available
Government National Mortgage Association Not Avditab Not Available
U.S.V.A. REMIC Not Available Not Available
U.S. Treasury Notes AAA Not Available
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation AAA Not Alable
Municipal Bonds AAA Not Available
Corporate Bonds AAto A- Not Available
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTSGontinued)

Concentration of Credit Risk
As of April 30, 2013, the Fire Pension Fund’s inwesnts are concentrated as follows:

Investment Percentage
Government National Mortage Association 7.48%
Federal Home Loan Bank 0.49%
Federal National Mortgage Association 2.00%
Freddie Mac 1.04%
U.S. V.A. REMIC 45.00%
U.S. Treasury Notes 2.53%
Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation 1.72%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 3.87%
Vanguard Inter Term Bond Index Signal CL 5.32%
Corporate Bonds 11.59%

Foreign Currency Risk
As of April 30, 2013, the Fire Pension Fund did have foreign currency risk.

Police Pension Fund
At April 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the Pelieension Fund’s deposits was $357,390 and thelizdakce
was $359,706. The deposits were comprised ofastehecking, money market and certificates of digpo

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the eveht bank failure, the Police Pension Fund’s d&pasay not be
returned to it. The Police Pension Fund requites &ll deposits be fully covered by FDIC insuramge
collateralized with investments held by the finahanstitution in the Police Pension Fund’s name.

As of April 30, 2013, the Police Pension Fund Haglfollowing investments:
Weighted Averag

U.S. Treasury Inflation Index N¢ 4.72 $ 308,227 $ 382,74
U.S. Treasury Str 0.8C 362,31¢ 374,61¢
U.S. Treasury Bor 3.04 781,67 967,00(
Federal National Mortgage Associal 14.5¢ 261,92( 340,70°
Federal Home Loan Ba 6.7(C 1,099,20. 1,379,24i
Federal Farm Credit Ba 3.24 266,57! 291,65!
Government National Mortgage Associa 18.11 1,072,32: 1,142,71!
Tennessee Valley Author 7.8C 296,70: 349,34:
lllinois ST 0.0¢ 300,26: 300,73t
Naperville IL Munie Bon 2.5¢ 299,52 299,04:
Corporate Bon 7.4¢ 266,41 250,00(
Schwab US Treasury Money Mar -- 757,49: 757,49:
Common Stoc -- 374,83t 399,52¢
Mutual Fund - 5,729,24. 7,751,22.
Total Investmen $I12,176,71 986,

Deposits as Reported Abc - 357,39(
Total Deposits and Investme $ 15,343,44
As Reported in the Combining Statement of Fiduchey Asset:

Cash and Cash Equivale $ 357,39(
Investment 14,986,05
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTSGontinued)

Interest Rate Risk

The Police Pension Fund'’s investment policy linmitgestment maturities in order to maintain suffigiéquidity
to reflect the cash flow needs of the fund typengednvested. The policy also requires diversifmatof the
investment portfolio via length of maturity as aane of managing its exposure to fair value lossistng from
increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk
As of April 30, 2013, the Police Pension Fund’sagstments credit ratings were as follows:
Standard & Moody's Investors

Investment Poor's Rating Service Rating
Naperville IL Muni Bond AAA Aaa
Ilinois ST A- A2
Tennesse Valley Authority AA+ Aaa
Federal National Mortgage Association AA+ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank AA+ Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank AA+ Aaa
Governmental National Mortgage Association Not Aafaié N ot Available
Corporate Bond AA Aa2

Concentration of Credit Risk
As of April 30, 2013, the Police Pension Fund’sdastments are concentrated as follows:

Investment Percentage
Government National Mortgage Association 7.45%
U.S. Treasury Strips 2.44%
Federal Home Loan Bank 8.99%
U.S. Treasury Bonds 6.30%
U.S. Treasury Inflation Index Note 2.49%
Federal National Mortgage Association 2.22%
Federal Farm Credit Bank 1.90%
Tennessee Valley Authority 2.28%
Corporate Bond 1.63%
Ilinois ST 1.96%
Naperville IL Muni Bond 1.95%
Harbor International Mutual Fund 7.34%
Longleaf Partners Mutual Fund 6.85%
Mainstay Large Cap Mutual Fund 5.77%
Oakmark Mutual Fund 7.66%
Primecap Odyssey Growth Mutual Fund 6.37%
Tweedy Browne Global Mutal Fund 5.95%
Baron Growth Fund Inst Mutual Fund 2.63%
Champlain Small Company Mutual Fund 3.63%

Foreign Currency Risk
As of April 30, 2013, the Police Pension Fund did Imave foreign currency risk.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
APRIL 30, 2013

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City began a self-insured workers’ compensagimmgram in 2001 by which the City pays claims from
general revenues up to a certain amount at whiaft gee City carries excess coverage. Non-increéatataims
adjustment expense has not been included as panedfability for claims and judgments. The ligtyi for
claims experienced as of April 30, 2013 that arbdgaid in the subsequent year is $2,346,994 aimtiuded

in accrued employee obligations.

Changes in the funds’ claims liability amount dgrthe fiscal year were as follows:

Year Ending April 30,

2013 2012
Liability beginning balance $ 2,931,102 $2,260,885
Claims and changes in estimates 633,504 954,088
Claim payments (1,217,612) (283,871)
Liability ending balanc $ 2,346,99. $2,931,10:

The City is also exposed to various risks of ladated to torts; thefts of, damage to and destnabf assets;
errors and omissions and natural disasters fortwthie City carries commercial insurance. TheresHaaen no
significant reduction in coverage from the prioay@and settlements have not exceeded coveragé&e ipast
three years.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of April 30, 2013 for the City, aparted in the statement of net position, includthg
applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts,as follows:

Receivables:
Sewer User Fees $ 2,259,365
Ambulance Fees 383,064
Real Estate Taxes 14,337,437
Intergovernmental 3,283,894
Other 612,411
Total Receivables 20,876,171
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts (480,568)
Net Total Receivabl $ 20,395,60

Real estate taxes of $14,337,437 were not avaifableollection and payment of current liabilitias April 30,
2013 and are reported as deferred revenues. Therrgoental financial statements reported an addition
$1,161,036 of intergovernmental revenue as defenaame at April 30, 2013.

RETIREMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITMENTS

1. lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Plan Description

The City’s defined benefit pension plan for Regudaiployees provides retirement and disability bignebost
retirement increases, and death benefits to plambees and beneficiaries. The City’s employer pign
affiliated with the lllinois Municipal RetirementNIRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefibyisions
are established by statute and may only be chahgetie General Assembly of the State of IllinoibRF
issues a publicly available financial report thatludes financial statements and required suppleamnen
information. That report may be obtained on-lihgraw.imrf.org.
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NOTE 6. RETIREMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITMENTS (@tinued)

Funding Policy

As set by statue, your regular plan members arainext| to contribute 4.50 percent of their annualered
salary. The statute requires employers to cortilite amount necessary, in addition to memberriboribns,
to finance the retirement coverage of its own elygds. The employer rate for calendar year 201@ bgehe
employer was 10.42 percent of annual covered payréhe employer annual required contribution réde
calendar year 2012 was 12.38 percent. The City edstributes for disability benefits, death betsefind
supplemental retirement benefits, all of which poeled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates figadbility and
death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trisstedile the supplemental retirement benefits imtset by
statute.

Annual Pension Cost

For calendar year ending December 31, 2012, thgsGictual contributions for pension cost for thegRlar
were $632,255. lIts required contribution for cdlenyear 2012 was $751,182.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Regular Plan

Fiscal Yea Annual Percentage of  Net Pension
Ending Pension Cost APC Obligation
12/31/2012 $ 751,182 84% $ -
12/31/2011 692,620 80% -
12/31/2010 655,792 T7% -

The required contribution for 2012 was determinsgart of the December 31, 2010, actuarial valoatising
the entry age normal actuarial cost method. Theasial assumptions as December 31, 2010, incl¢ded.5
percent investment rate of return (net of admiatste and direct investment expenses), (b) projestdary
increases of 4.00% a year, attributable to inflgti@) additional projected salary increase randiogh 0.4% to
10% per year depending on age and service, a@bbtto seniority/merit, and (d) post retiremenhdfe
increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value mfryemployer Regular plan position was determinsicigu
techniques that spread the effects of short-tertatility in the market value of investments ovefige-year
period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial ararket value of assets. The City’s regular gamifunded
actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 201Baig amortized as a level percentage of projeesuoll on
an open 30 year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuaaiiation date, the regular plan was 73.69 periended.
The actuarial liability for benefits was $18,23714&nd the actuarial value of assets was $13,439réSulting
in an underfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) of $87,694. The covered payroll for calendar year22@hnual
payroll of active employees covered by the plany \$8,067,708 and the ratio of the UAAL to the ceder
payroll was 79 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented asf&®iBiving the notes to the financial statementssgnts
multiyear trend information about whether the adtlaralue of plan assets in increasing or decnggsier time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for leits.

2. Police and Firemen Pension

a. Plan Description and Contributions Information

The Police Pension Plan covers police sworn peedonvhich is a defined benefit single-employer
pension plan. Although this is a single-employengion plan, the defined benefits and employee and
employer contributions levels are governed by disnCompiled Statutes (Chapter 40, Act 5, Articje 3
and may be amended only by the lllinois legislature
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NOTE 6. RETIREMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITMENTS (@tinued)

The City accounts for the plan as a pension twsd f The City’s payroll for employees covered lhy t
Police Pension Plan for the year ended April 3013@vas $3,967,820 out of a total payroll of
$15,106,511.

At April 30, 2013, the Police Pension Plan membigrsbnsisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently recei
benefits and terminated employees entitl¢

benefits but not yet receiving th: 59
Current employee

Vestec 38

Nonveste 21
Total 11¢

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benagtwell as death and disability benefits. Police
officers hired before January 1, 2011, attaining #ge of 50 or more with 20 or more years of
creditable service are entitled to receive a mgnttirement benefit of one-half of the monthlyasgl
attached to the rank held on the last day of seywc for one year prior to the last day, whicheger
greater. The monthly pension shall be increasedig-twelfth of 2.5% of such salary for each
additional month of service over 20 years up to/&ars to a maximum of 75% of such monthly salary.
Employees with at least 8 years but less than 2@syef credited service may retire at or after @ge
and receive a reduced retirement benefit.

Police officers hired on or after January 1, 2Qdtfgining the age of 55 with at least 10 yearsreflible
service are entitled to receive an annual retirérbenefit of 2.5% of final average salary for yedr
service. A police officer who is retiring aftetaihing age 50 with 10 or more years of creditaglerice
shall be reduced by %2 of 1% for each month thaethployee’s age is under age 55. The annual salary
based on the plan year for the police officer shall exceed $106,800 as of January 1, 2011. The
maximum salary cap increases each year thereafter.

The monthly pension of a police officer hired befdanuary 1, 2011, who retired with 20 or more year
of service after January 1, 1977 shall be increasetlally, following the first anniversary date of
retirement and be paid upon reaching the age lefat 55 years, by 3% of the original pension &#td 3

annually thereafter.

The monthly pension of a police officer hired onafiter January 1, 2011, shall be increased annually
following the later of the first anniversary dateretirement or the month following the attainmentage

60, by the lesser of 3% or % of the annual unaglupercentage increase in the consumer price index.
Employees with at least 10 years but less thane2@syof creditable service may retire at or after @0

and receive a reduced benefit.

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.8f%eir base salary to the Police Pension Pldn. |
an employee leaves covered employment with less Btayears of service, accumulated employee
contributions may be refunded without accumulatg@grest. The City is required to contribute the
remaining amounts necessary to finance the plaactgrially determined by an enrolled actuary. By
the year 2033, the City’s contributions must acclateuto the point where the past service costHer t
Police Pension Plan is fully funded.

Fire-sworn the Firemen’s Pension Plan covers paedorwhich is defined benefit single-employer
pension plan. Although this is a single-employengion plan, the defined benefits and employee and
employer contributions levels are mandated bydiBnCompiled Statutes (Chapter 40, Act 5, Article 4
and may be amended only by the lllinois legislature
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NOTE 6. RETIREMENT AND PENSION FUND COMMITMENTS (®tinued)
The City accounts for the plan as a pension twsd f The City’s payroll for employees covered Iy t
Firemen's Pension Plan for the year ended April 3013 was $3,786,805 out of total payroll of
$15,106,511.
At April 30, 2013, the Firemen’s Pension Plan rhenship consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits and terminated employees entitled to

benefits but not yet receiving them 68
Current Employees:
Vested 30
Nonvested 25
Total 12Z

The following is a summary of the Firefighters’ Bem Plan as provided for in the lllinois Compiled
Statues:

The Firemen’s Pension Plan provides retirement fitsnas well as death and disability benefits.
Firefighters hired before January 1, 2011, attgrtime age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of
creditable service are entitled to receive a mgntbtirement benefit of one-half of the monthlyasgl
attached to the rank held in the fire service atdhte of retirement. The monthly pension shall be
increased by one-twelfth of 2.5% of such monthliaisafor each additional month over 20 years of
service up to 30 years to a maximum of 75% of suohthly salary. Employees with at least 10 years
but less than 20 years of credited service mayereati or after age 60 and receive a reduced raginem
benefit.

Firefighters hired on or after January 1, 20113imittg the age of 55 with at least 10 years of ibted
service are entitled to receive an annual retirérbenefit of 2.5% of final average salary for yedr
service. A firefighter who is retiring after attaig age 50 with 10 or more years of creditablgisershall
be reduced by ¥ of 1% for each month that theidinéér's age is under age 55. The annual salasgda
on the plan year for the firefighter shall not ee@&106,800 as of January 1, 2011. The maximuanysal
cap increases each year thereafter.

The monthly pension of a firefighter hired befoamudary 1, 2011, who retired with 20 or more yedrs o
service after January 1, 1977 shall be increasedidly, following the first anniversary date of
retirement and be paid upon reaching the age lefaat 55 years, by 3% of the original pension &#td 3
annually thereafter.

The monthly pension of a firefighter hired on oteafJanuary 1, 2011, shall be increased annually,
following the later of the first anniversary datieretirement or the month following the attainmehtge

60, by the lesser of 3% or % of the annual unagfupercentage increase in the consumer price index.
Employees with at least 10 years but less thane2@syof creditable service may retire at or aftgr 60

and receive a reduced benefit.

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455%eir base salary to the Firemen’s Pension
Plan. If an employee leaves covered employmeri Wbiss than 20 years of service, accumulated
employee contributions may be refunded without smdated interest. The City is required to
contribute the remaining amounts (not less thad®4) necessary to finance the plan as actuarially
determined by an enrolled actuary. By the year32@3e City’s contributions must accumulate to the
point where the past service cost for the FiremBeission Plan is fully funded.
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b. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and PRosition Matters

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using theualcbasis of accounting. Employee and employer
contributions are recognized as revenues in thegar which employee services are performed.

Method Used to Value Investments

Fixed-income and equity securities are reportedamtvalue. Investment income is recognized as
earned. Gains and losses on sales and exchandgeedincome securities are recognized on the
transaction date.

c. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City’s annual pension cost and net pensiorgabtin for the current year were as follows:

Police Firemen's

Pension Pension
Annual Required Contribution $ 2,077518 $ 2,141,818
Interest on Net Pension Obligation 578,551 594,509
Annual Pension Cost 2,656,069 2,736,327
Contributions Made 1,005,747 1,005,747
Increase in Net Pension Obligation 1,650,322 1,730,580
Net Pension Obligation Beginning of Year 8,265,019 8,807,538
Net Pension Obligation End of Year $ 9,915,341 $ 10,538,118

The annual required contribution for the currenaryeias determined as part of the April 30, 2012
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal costhod. The actuarial assumptions included (a)
6.75% investment rate of return (net of adminigteaexpenses) and (b) projected salary increases of
4.5% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an ildlatomponent of 3.0%. The actuarial value of &sse
was determined using market values. The unfundaghsal accrued liability is being amortized as a
level percentage of projected payroll on an opesisbaThe remaining amortization period at April 30
2012 was, 28 years.

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension Of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
Police Pension 4/30/2013 $ 2,656,069 26.79% $ 9,915,341
4/30/2012 2,511,009 30.38% 8,265,019
4/30/2011 2,406,466 35.63% 6,754,576
Fire Pension 4/30/2013 2,736,327 25.97% 10,538,118
4/30/2012 2,774,127 31.50% 8,807,538
4/30/2011 2,658,120 37.79% 7,034,411
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d. Concentration
The City has a concentration of 5% or more investsin the following organizations:

Police Pension:

U.S. Treasury Bonds $ 967,000

Government National Mortgage Association 1,142,719
Fire Pension:

Corporate Bonds 1,859,631

Government National Mortgage Association 1,200,527

e. Leqgally Required Reserves

The City has the following legally required resesve

Police Pension $ 16,151,184
Firemen Pension 16,823,321

NOTE 7. CONTINGENCIES

The City has not contributed the required minimwntdbutions to the police and fire pension trustds for the
current and prior fiscal years. Beginning in tiexdl year 2016, if the City fails to contributeethequired
minimum contributions to the pension funds, thegi@mfunds may certify to the State Comptroller éineounts
of the delinquent payments, after giving noticehe City. The State Comptroller must deduct angbdg into
the pension fund the certified amounts or a portibthose amounts from state funds to the City.

NOTE 8. WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT ENTERPRISE FUND

Regionalization of Wastewater Treatment Plant

Pursuant to an intergovernmental cooperation ageaeoriginally agreed to in April 1984 between igy; the
Metro East Sanitary District; Madison County, ltlie; and the Village of Glen Carbon, Illinois, théastewater
Treatment Plant began to accept and treat wastevirat®e the Lansdown Service Area of the Metro East
Sanitary District, Madison County Special Servicee® No. 1, and from the Village of Glen Carbonndis.
The participants have agreed to purchase wastewa@ment services from the City at rates and ggsar
established by the Granite City Regional Treatnizodrd. The rates and charges are intended toaddidbe
cost of services provided to each participant basegercentage of flow and wastewater content, hvknid
reduce the City’s operation cost burden. Totaknexe earned by the Wastewater Treatment Plant fiEister
Fund from the three regional participants for tearyended April 30, 2013 was $2,837,137.

NOTE 9. TRANSFERS

Transfers are substantially for the purposes o$isliking operating functions, funding capital peigand asset
acquisitions, or maintaining debt service on aimmubasis. Resources are accumulated in a fuedgport and
simplify the administration of various projectspypgrams.
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NOTE 10. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

The following is a summary of interfund receivabdesl payables at April 30, 2013:

Balance Increase Balance
Funds Due To Funds Due From 4/30/2012 (Decrease) 4/30/2013

General Fund Community Development $ 81,136 (68,082) $ 13,054
General Fund Capital Projects 44,287 196,656 240,943
General Fund Drug Traffic Prevention 245,350 - 245,350
General Fund Motor Fuel Tax Fund 2,366,855 (590,955) 1,775,900
Wastewater Treatment General Fund 1,760,444  (1,678,122) 82,322
General Fund Tax Increment Financing F 1,581,808 (9,108) 1,572,700
General Fund Wastewater Treatment Plant 26,562 47,195 73,757
General Fund Sewer System Fund 47,398 (47,195) 203

$ 6,153,841 $ (2,149,611 $ 4,004,22!

NOTE 11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Liabilities reported as Accounts Payable on theegoment-wide statement of net positions are coregrid the
following components:

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activitites
Current payables due to vendors$ 744,552% 1,034,897
Retainage on contracts payable - 1,340,142
Total Accounts Payak $ 744,55: $ 2,375,03!

NOTE 12. COMMITMENTS

A commitment under a lease agreement for the wadésvireatment plant provides for minimum annuatak
payments as follows:

Year
Ending Land
April 30, Facilities
2014 $ 4,150
Total $ 4,15C

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION CONSTRACTS

At April 30, 2013, the City had outstanding constioin contracts for various projects totaling apmately
$2,083,190.

NOTE 14. DEFICIT NET POSITION

The City has deficit net positions in the followimgpnmajor funds: Motor Fuel Tax Fund of $1,918,481
Capital Projects Fund of $232,424 as of April 3012
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NOTE 15. TAX INCREMENT FINANCING SPECIAL REVENUE FND

On July 1, 1986, the City adopted and approved a [harement Redevelopment Plan and Project and
ordinances adopting Tax Increment Financing, aiatefthancing, through incremental property and Sédees,

the public improvements of a plan to revitalize atelelop a designated Redevelopment Project aréaein
City’s Downtown Central Business District. On Sapber 23, 1997, the City adopted and approved an
Industrial Park Conservation Area Redevelopmenh i@t also will use Tax Increment Financing to elep

the project area along Route 3 as an industridd. p&iour additional TIF Districts have also beemfed that
allows the incremental taxes to be returned tobigness that generates the increment as a reiemhers for
capital outlay until expiration of the TIF or a getermined minimum dollar amount is reimbursedhey City.

In May of 2005, the Nameoki Village Tax Incremetmdncing District of the City issued a TIF ReveriNete,
Series 2005 for $700,000 and two Consumer Tax Revélotes, Series 2005 (Phase 1 for $1,400,000 laaskeP
2 for $3,400,000). These notes were issued fopthpose of paying a portion of the costs of retigpmeent
projects in the Nameoki TIF and Business Distrigdsportion, $1,280,000, of the Consumer Tax ReeeNates
was retired by $1,635,000 in Special Business bis8ales Tax Revenue Bonds issued by the Soutbmest
Illinois Development Authority.

The TIF Revenue Note, Consumer Tax Revenue Notdstten Special Business District Sales Tax Revenue
Bonds are payable solely from the incremental taxefsom other taxes generated by the developmedtaae
not an obligation of the City.

NOTE 16. LEASE REVENUE

The City of Granite City leases certain propert@srea businesses. These leases are non-carcejarhting
leases. A summary of the leases is as follows:

Current Expiration
Location Annual Payment  (Including Extensions)
2679 Missouri Ave $ 12,000 November 2028
lowa & 24th Street 3,900 September 2013
2001 Madison Avenue 226,600 January 2060
Signage 1,600 June 2011

Minimum rentals on non-cancelable leases for the fie years are as follows:

Year Amount
2014 $ 242,150
2015 240,200
2016 239,800
2017 238,600
2018 238,600
2019 - 2023 1,193,000
2024 - 2028 1,193,000
2029 - 2033 1,139,000
2034 - 2038 1,133,000
2039 - 2043 1,133,000
2044 - 2048 1,133,000
2049 - 2053 1,133,000
2054 - 2058 1,133,000
2059 - 2060 396,550
Total $ 10,785,900
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NOTE 17. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 3013 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:

Land $ 9,087,322 % - % - $ 9,087,322

Construction in Process 3,942,389 397,877 (2,118,376) 2,221,890
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 13,029,71 397,877 (2,118,376) 11,309,212
Capital Assets, being Depreciated

Buildings and Improvements 17,434,450 131,376 - 17,565,826

Equipment 6,014,019 136,265 - 6,150,284

Vehicles 4,928,294 201,372 - 5,129,666

Infrastructure 19,563,543 2,315,196 - 21,878,739
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 47,940,306 2,784,209 - 50,724,515
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvements 3,806,073 426,082 - 4,232,155

Equipment 3,963,436 354,144 - 4,317,580

Vehicles 4,045,057 224,549 - 4,269,606

Infrastructure 199,165 218,786 - 417,951
Total Accumulated Depreciation 12,013,731 1,223,561 - 13,237,292
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net 3597%,5 1,560,648 - 37,487,223

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, $48,956,28 $ 1,958,52!

$ (2,118,376 $48,796,43

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets:

Construction in Process $ 6,943,025% 9,021,120 $ - $ 15,964,145
Buildings 1,728,589 13,972 - 1,742,561
Treatment Facility 33,885,651 - - 33,885,651
Equipment 1,780,480 - 1,780,480
Vehicles 1,275,740 - 1,275,740
Total Capital Assets 45,613,485 9,035,092 - 54,648,577
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings 1,664,010 8,797 - 1,672,807
Treatment Facility 19,509,970 737,447 - 20,247,417
Equipment 1,560,283 40,022 - 1,600,305
Vehicles 1,208,184 24,836 - 1,233,020
Total Accumulated Depreciation 23,942,447 811,102 - 24,753,549
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, $21,671,03 $ 8,22399 $ - $29,895,02
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NOTE 17. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charge to the variougiturstprograms of the City as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 309,491
Public Safety 568,060
Public Works 346,010
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Actig $ 1,223,56.

Business-Type Activities:

Wastewater Treatment Plant $ 580,271
Sewer System Fund 230,831
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Acts $ 811,10:

NOTE 18. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended April 30, 2007, the City &xs$two Industrial Project Revenue Bonds to providancial

assistance to private sector entities for the aitipm and construction of facilities deemed toitvehe public
interest. The bonds are secured by the properindied and are payable solely from payments receaineitie
underlying mortgage loans. The bonds for the twajgets are $1,800,000 and $2,650,000 respectiligpn

repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquiaedities transfers to the private sector entisesved by the
bond issuance. Neither the City, the State, ngrpaiitical subdivision thereof is obligated in amanner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bondsrarereported as liabilities in the accompanyinaficial

statements.

During the year ended April 30, 2006, the City es$$1,000,000 of Industrial Project Revenue Bongwsovide

financial assistance to a private-sector entitytfier acquisition and construction of facilities oheg to be in the
public interest. The bonds are secured by thegtpfinanced and are payable solely from paymesteived

on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repaymétiteobonds, ownership of the acquired facilitiemsfers to
the private-sector entity served by the bond isseariNeither the City, the State, nor any politisabdivision

thereof is obligated in any manner for repaymerthefbonds. Accordingly, these bonds are alsaeqirted as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statengent

NOTE 19. LONG-TERM DEBT

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY DEBT

Bonded Indebtedness

The City issued Local Government Program RevenualBan September 2008. The bonds, totaling $90080,
are payable from the incremental taxes of the DowntTax Increment Financing District (TIF 1). Thends
bear interest of between 4.5% and 7.0% and matwarying amounts from 2009 to 2022. The procexddke
bond are to be used to finance redevelopment pgeojecthe Downtown Tax Increment Financing District
including renovations of the police and fire depsmt, improvements to the youth center and YMCA and
construction of a movie theater. The bonds weraiack refunded by the 2012 Series bonds.

The City issued Southwestern lllinois Developmenithority Local Government Program Revenue Bonds,
Series 2009 (City of Granite City Project) in Ma@0®. The bonds, totaling $3,640,000 are payalom fihe
incremental taxes of the Route 3 Corridor Tax Imeat Financing District (TIF 4). The bonds bedeiiast of
8.00% and mature in varying amounts from 2009 t6920The proceeds of the bond are to be used amdim
redevelopment projects in the Route 3 Corridor stdal Park Conservation Area including constructinf
commercial and retail development including a LavMdome Improvement store along with eight outldtse
balance of the bonds at April 30, 2013 is $2,440,00
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NOTE 19. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The City issued Southwestern lllinois Developmenithority Local Government Program Revenue Bonds,
Series 2009-B (City of Granite City Project) in Retber 2009. The bonds, totaling $3,805,000 arelgay
from the incremental taxes of the Route 3 Corrifiax Increment Financing District (TIF 4). The bsrokar
interest of 7.75% and mature in varying amountsf2910 to 2022. The proceeds of the bond are tesbd to
finance redevelopment projects in the Route 3 @orrindustrial Park Conservation Area including stomction

of water and sewer improvements, the constructicstreet improvements and related costs. The balahthe
bonds at April 30, 2013 is $3,265,000.

The City issued Local Government Program RevenuedBoSeries 2009-A in December 2009. The bonds,
totaling $4,210,000 are payable from the incrementees of the Route 203 Tax Increment Financingtridit
(TIF 7). The bonds bear interest of 7.75% and neaitu varying amounts from 2010 to 2022. The peolseof

the bond are to be used to finance redevelopmesjeqis in the Route 203 Redevelopment Project Area
including construction of street improvements aeldted costs. The balance of the bonds at April2803 is
$4,000,000.

On December 1, 2012, the City issued $9,820,00General Obligation Alternative Source Bonds with an
average interest of 5.25% to advance refund $8)060pf outstanding 2008 Series bonds with an aeerag
interest rate of approximately 7.00%. The net peais of the issuance (after the addition of thedlgmemium

of $186,580 and subtraction of the cost of issuaaee underwriter's discount totaling $340,120) pdus
additional $1,325,805 of 2008 sinking fund moniesrevused to purchase U.S. government securitidmser
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trugh wnd escrow agent to provide for all future dsbtvice
payments on the 2008 Series bonds. As a resul2@B8 Series bonds are considered to be defeaskthan
liability for those bonds has been removed fromgbeernment-wide financial statement of net positio

The advance refunding resulted in a difference betwthe reacquisition price and the net carryinguarhof the
old debt of $2,422,965. This difference, reporiedhe accompanying financial statements as denludtom
bonds payable, is being charged to operations giirabie year 2023 using the effective-interest nath@®he
City completed the advance refunding to remove sinalele covenants of the old bond issue and reduent
annual debt service requirements resulted in anao@ loss (difference between the present valfieseoold
and new debt service payments) of $570,984.

Notes Payable

The City entered into a loan with Ford Motor Creditpurchase five police vehicles October 2010e Han of
$134,635 is to be repaid in three annual installmémough October 2012. The annual installmentduding
interest at 6.0%, are $47,517. The balance dbtire at April 30, 2013 is $-0-.

The City entered into a loan with Ford Motor Creditpurchase a four police vehicles in Septembé&d 20The
loan of $115,787 is to be repaid in three annusthiiments through September 2013. The annualimsnts,
including interest at 6.00%, are $41,015. Thenxdaof the loan at April 30, 2013 is $38,243.

The City entered into a loan with Ford Motor Creditpurchase a four police vehicles in Septembé&@20The
loan of $122,471 is to be repaid in three annusthiiments through September 2013. The annualimsnts,
including interest at 6.00%, are $43,224. Themaeof the loan at April 30, 2013 is $79,247.

The City entered into a loan with the lIllinois Dejpaent of Transportation (IDOT) to construct raddk in the
new industrial park in May 1999. The loan of $225l is to be repaid by twenty annual installmehtsugh
May 24, 2019. The annual installments, includinggiest at 3.00%, are $48,793. The balance ofothe at
April 30, 2013 is $264,321.

The City entered into a lease purchase with Cdlarpiinancial to purchase a paver, trailer anchdoompactor

for the Public Works Department in June 2006. Tdéen of $318,208 is to be repaid in seven annual
installments through June 2012. The annual imataits, including interest at 5.385%, are $52,91de balance

of the loan at April 30, 2013 is $-0-.
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NOTE 19. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The City entered into a lease purchase agreemehttiaé Bank of Edwardsville for a Mack Truck andotw
Schien Trailers in December 2011. The agreemestfera$211,000 and is to be repaid in three insitits of
$72,767, including interest at 3.47%. The balasfadie loan at April 30, 2013 is $70,327.

The City entered into a lease purchase agreemehtti@ Bank of Edwardsville for a fire departmenick in
July 2010. The agreement was for $20,570 and lsetoepaid in four installments of $5,739 plus liegt at
4.87%. The balance of the loan at April 30, 2G1310,865.

The City entered into a lease purchase agreemémivérquette Bank — Government Capital Corp to pase a
law enforcement computer system in June 2008. |d@dre of $297,204 is to be repaid in five annuatatisients
through July 2012. The annual installments, iniclgdnterest at 5.0%, are $65,372. The balandbefoan at
April 30, 2012 is $-0-.

The City entered into a lease purchase agreeméehttiaé First Midwest Bank for the purchase of pelEPU
and phone system upgrades and ticket writers iol2ct2010. The agreement was for $153,097 anal it
repaid in five installments of $34,359 plus intéras 4.65%. The balance of the loan at April 3012 is
$64,211.

The City entered into a loan with Madison County n@aunity Development to finance infrastructure
improvements of relocating high-pressure gas limé electric lines in May 2010. The loan of $75@09t0 be
repaid in twenty-eight quarterly installments thygbuMay 2017. The quarterly installments, includingrest at
3.0%, are $29,797. The balance of the loan atl 80ri2013 is $473,914.

The City entered into a loan with Madison Countyn®aunity Development to purchase fire truck in Debem
2008. The loan of $297,007 is to be repaid in fwmual installments through December 2013. Thrian
installments, including interest at 3.00%, are 863, The balance of the loan at April 30, 201868,963.

BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITY DEBT

The City was awarded a second loan of $3,938,2&ugin the State of lllinois Environment Protectidgency
Bureau of Water in August 2003. This loan finantsel upgrade of the City’s Regional Wastewater ffneat
Facilities. Payments are due semiannually on Jgriaand July 27 through January 2025, includirtgrest at
2.50%. As of April 30, 2013, the balance outstagdin the loan was $2,652,934.

The City was awarded a third loan of $1,660,938ubgh the State of lllinois Environment Protectiogefcy
Bureau of Water in October 2008. This loan fin@haeanhole and sewer projects. Payments are due
semiannually on March 1 and September 1 througkeSdper 2029, including interest at 2.50%. As ofilAR0,
2013, the balance outstanding on the loan was §1498.

The City was awarded a four loan of $8,000,000ufhothe State of Illinois Environment Protectionefgy

Water Pollution Control Loan Program in Septemb@t’2 Upon completion of the project $2,000,000hef

loan will be forgiven and the additional funds wikk repaid with an interest rate of 1.25%. Théanldinanced
sewer rehabilitation projects. Payments are dudasemally on May 1 and November 1 through 2032. oAs
April 30, 2013, the balance outstanding on the was $5,724,024.

The City was awarded a fifth loan of $2,000,00®@tiyh the State of lllinois Environment Protectiogeficy
Water Pollution Control Loan Program in Septemi@t2 Upon completion of the project $500,000 ef lthan
will be forgiven and the additional funds will bepaid with an interest rate of 1.25%. This loaraficed
improvement to the wastewater treatment plant. Raysnare due semiannually on March 1 and Septefnber
through 2032. As of April 30, 2013, the balancéstanding on the loan was $1,517,037.

The City issued Local Government Program RevenurdBoSeries 2010 in November 2010. The bonds,
totaling $3,485,000 are payable from the net regenderived from the payments made pursuant to the
Intergovernmental Agreements by the parties toltkergovernmental Agreements. The bonds bearastef
between 2.0% and 4.2% and mature in varying amdums 2011 to 2029. The proceeds of the bond aiset
used to finance the acquisition and constructiorextensions, improvements, and additions to theesys
including but not limited to the construction ofpnovements to the wastewater treatment plant. Bfenbe of

the bonds at April 30, 2013 is $3,225,000.
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The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities, net of unamortized costs, for the year ended April

30, 2013:

Government Activities:
Bond Payable:
Tax Increment Revenue
Bonds Series 2008
Tax Increment Revenue
Bond Series 2012 Refunding
Tax Increment Revenue
Bonds Series 2009-C
Tax Increment Revenue
Bonds Series 2009-B
Tax Increment Revenue
Bonds Series 2009-A
Less Unamortized Costs:
Bond Discount
Bond Premium
Issuance Costs (Note 22)
Deferred Charge on Refunding
Total Bond Payable
Notes Payable:
Ford Motor Credit
Ford Motor Credit
Ford Motor Credit
IL Dept of Transportation
Caterpillar Financial
Bank of Edwardsville
Bank of Edwardsville
Marquette Bank
First Midwest Bank
Madison County
Madison County
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Other Liabilities:
Net Pension Obligation
Compensated Absences
Total Other Liabilities

Governmental Activities
Long-Term Liabilities

Amounts

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
$ 8,465,000 $ $ 8,465,000 $ $ -
9,820,000 345,000 9,475,000 -
2,820,000 380,000 2,440,000 340,000
3,610,000 345,000 3,265,000 245,000
4,115,000 115,000 4,000,000 135,000
(400,326) - 270,655 (129,671) -

25,598 186,580 (30,262) 181,916

(339,944) - 339,944 - -
(2,547,675) 124,710 (2,422,965) -
18,295,328 7,458,905 10,355,047 16,809,280 720,000
44,828 44,828 - -
74,772 - 36,529 38,243 38,243
122,471 43,224 79,247 38,469
342,511 - 78,190 264,321 40,863
50,206 50,206 - -
138,294 67,967 70,327 70,327
15,833 4,968 10,865 5,210
62,261 62,261 - -
94,194 29,983 64,211 31,376
576,944 103,030 473,914 106,155
124,093 61,130 62,963 62,963
19,819,264 7,581,376 10,937,363 17,873,371 1,113,606
17,072,557 3,380,902 - 20,453,459 -
3,245,386 1,157,640 1,139,440 3,263,586 664,332
20,317,943 4,538,542 1,139,440 23,717,045 664,332
$ 40,137,207 $12,119918 $12,076,803 $ 41590416 $ 1,777,938
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NOTE 19. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Business-Type Activities:
Bond Payable:
Revenue Bonds
Series 2010 $ 3,355,000 $ - $ 130,000 $ 3,225000 $135,000
Less Unamortized Costs:
Bond Premium 13,540 - 732 12,808 -
Issurance Costs (Note 22) (151,087) 151,087 - - -
Total Bond Payable 3,217,453 151,087 130,732 3,237,808 135,000
Notes Payable:
IL EPA (1) $ 2,843,158 $ - $ 190,224 $ 2,652,934 $195,009
IL EPA (2) 1,624,844 47,195 91,546 1,580,493 73,001
IL EPA (3) 1,460,365 4,263,659 - 5,724,024 253,594
IL EPA (4) 185,011 1,332,015 - 1,517,026 67,210
Total Long-Term Liabilities 9,330,831 5,793,956 412,502 14,712,285 723,814
Other Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 309,860 176,569 161,384 325,045 101,208
Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities $ 9,640,691 $5970525 $ 573,886 $ 15,037,330 $825,022

The annual requirements to retire the notes payable as of April 30, 2013 are as follows:

Fiscal
Y ear Ended Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
April 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2014 $ 1,113,606 $ 1,303,491 $ 723,814 $ 312,889
2015 1,100,732 1,230,883 734,579 298,074
2016 1,231,047 1,153,708 749,566 283,964
2017 1,926,411 1,158,234 766,774 267,480
2018 1,329,922 906,929 783,214 251,615
2019-2023 13,542,373 3,313,598 4,171,079 1,002,337
2024-2028 - - 3,811,728 526,275
2029-2033 - - 2,958,724 120,262
$ 20,244,091 $ 9,066,843 $ 14,699,478 $ 3,062,896
NOTE 20. STATEMENT OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
Assessed Valuation as of D ecember 31, 2012 $ 325,774,268
Debt Limit, 8.625% of Assessed Valuation $ 28,098,031
Less Contractud | ndebtedness 12,538,568
Legd Debt Margin $  15559,463
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NOTE 21. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City provides certain healthcare insurance benefitsrefired and disabled employees who meet the
eligibility requirements as described in the personnel policyptemiums are paid entirely by the retired and/or
disabled employee. The City has not calculated or recdh#edther post employment benefit (OPEB) liability,
but believes it to be immaterial to the financial statements. Jibe continues to expense the other post
employment benefit expenses as they are incurred.

NOTE 22. RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Staté&Bdtems Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities (GASB 65) in April 2012 to clarify the appropriate reportingdafferred outflows and inflows of
resources to insure consistency in financial reportingonUaoption of the statement, bond issuance costs are
expensed as incurred. The statement is applied retrogctivel

The City had previously recorded bond issuance casés asset with a value of $745,930 at April 30, 2012 and
in accordance with the requirements the GASB 65 baginnet positions are restated from $31,637,105 to
$30,891,175.

NOTE 23. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City has evaluated subsequent events through Decdri@p2013, the date on which the financial statements
were available to be issued.

The City entered into an agreement to purchase an ambuladane 2013. The total cost of the ambulance is
$118,000, which was financed over four years witingerest rate of 2.48%. The payments are due annually on
July 18", with the first payment was due July 15, 2013.
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Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Over (Under)
Origina Final (Budgetary Basis) Budget
Receipts:
Taxes $ 19394434 $ 19394434 $ 20,299,043 % 904,609
Intergovernmental Revenue (Grants) 1,356,000 1,356,000 1,042,059 (313,941)
Charges for Services 2,045,905 2,045,905 2,269,820 223,915
Licenses and Permits 769,100 769,100 734,362 (34,738)
Fines and Forfeits 390,125 390,125 446,422 56,297
Investment Earnings 53,665 53,665 51,656 (2,009)
Miscellaneous 950,761 950,761 1,017,853 67,092
Total Receipts 24,959,990 24,959,990 25,861,215 901,225
Disbursements
Mayor 738,777 738,777 703,101 35,676
Alderman 98,017 98,017 88,488 9,529
Clerk 260,306 260,306 278,813 (18,507)
Treasurer 301,834 301,834 296,414 5,420
Informational Technology 435,462 435,462 390,319 45,143
Financia 2,636,495 2,636,495 3,052,746 (416,251)
Police 8,407,453 8,407,453 8,128,484 278,969
Fire 6,671,815 6,671,815 6,412,750 259,065
Public Works 3,618,053 3,618,053 3,411,433 206,620
Building & Zoning 909,816 909,816 983,891 (74,075)
Safety and Risk 136,285 136,285 139,163 (2,878)
Civil Defense 27,915 27,915 36,156 (8,241)
Cinema 582,533 582,533 572,711 9,822
Summer Help 53,825 53,825 68,794 (14,969)
Total Disbursements 24,878,586 24,878,586 24,563,263 315,323
Excess (Deficit) of Receipts over Disbursements 81,404 81,404 1,297,952 1,216,548
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Refunding Bonds I ssued - - 122,471 122,471
Operating Transfers In (Out) - - (326,182) (326,182)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - (203,711) (326,182)
Excess (Deficit) of Receipts and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Disbursements and Other
Financing Uses $ 81,404  $ 81,404 1,004,241  $ 890,366
Change in Intergovernmental Revenue on Modified Accrual Basis (128,481)
Change in Prepaid Insurance (25,899)
Change in Interest Receivable (2,349)
Change in Accrued Employee Obligations 584,108
Change in Accounts Payable on Modified Accrual Basis 342,526

As Reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balance $ 1,864,146
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As Reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balance

43
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Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Over (Under)
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Budget
Receipts:
Real Estate Taxes - Downtown $ 1200000 $ 1,200000 $ 1243640 S 43,640
Redl Estate Taxes - GCS 920,252 920,252 920,252 -
Real Estate Taxes - AS 130,854 130,854 130,854 -
Red Estate Taxes- Rt 3 1,310,000 1,310,000 1,307,131 (2,869)
Redl Estate Taxes - Nameoki 210,000 210,000 222,429 12,429
Redl Estate Taxes - Port 25,000 25,000 24,724 (276)
Real Estate Taxes - Rt 203 4,664,412 4,664,412 4,664,412 -
Sales Taxes 82,000 82,000 109,348 27,348
Rent 226,600 226,600 207,717 (18,883)
Grant 37,500 37,500 (63,406) (100,906)
Investment Earnings 32,896 32,896 33,939 1,043
Other 123,882 123,882 94,900 (28,982)
Total Receipts 8,963,396 8,963,396 8,895,940 (67,456)
Disbursements
Downtown TIF 1,465,186 1,465,186 10,230,203 (8,765,017)
Granite City Stedl TIF 920,252 920,252 690,189 230,063
American Steel TIF 130,853 130,853 130,854 (@)
Route 3 TIF 1,317,000 1,317,000 1,469,018 (152,018)
Nameoki Village TIF 300,000 300,000 117,642 182,358
Port District TIF 175,000 175,000 2,003 172,997
Route 203 TIF 4,700,000 4,700,000 4,809,629 (109,629)
Total Disbursements 9,008,291 9,008,291 17,449,538 (8,441,247)
Excess (Deficit) of Receipts Over Disbursements (44,895) (44,895) (8,553,598) (8,508,703)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds From Borrowings - - 9,820,000 (9,820,000)
Loss on Refinancing - - (10,977,265) 10,977,265
Operating Transfers From (To) other Funds - - (216,772) (216,772)
Tota Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - (1,374,037) (10,036,772)
Excess (Deficit) of Receipts and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Disbursements and Other
Financing Uses $ (44895 $ (44,895 (9,927,635)  $(18,545,475)
Changein Revenue on Modified Accrual Basis 91,597
Change in Accounts Payable on Modified Accrual Basis 197,816
Change in Interest Receivable 5,347



CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

APRIL 30, 2013

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The budget is prepared on the cash basis of adoguas applied to the governmental funds in thécbas
financial statements. Revenues and expendituesgeported when they result from cash transactions.
LINE ITEM EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF BUDGET

During the year ended April 30, 2013, the City'pemditures exceeded budgetary guidelines in several
departmental and line item categories as indicatethe required supplementary schedules at pagés 42
43.
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Actuarial
Valuation
Date

4/30/2012
4/30/2011
4/30/2010
4/30/2009
4/30/2008
4/30/2007
4/30/2006
4/30/2005

4/30/2012
4/30/2011
4/30/2010
4/30/2009
4/30/2008
4/30/2007
4/30/2006
4/30/2005

Actuarial
Vaue of
Assets

@

$ 16,026,355

14,021,247
12,632,001
15,670,001
16,827,903
16,331,354
15,285,262

$ 17,393,812

16,636,316
15,346,426
18,735,007
19,072,129
18,545,115
17,220,222

CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FIRE AND POLICE PENSION

FUNDING PROGRESS

APRIL 30, 2013

Actuarial Accrued

Liability Unfunded
(AAL) AAL Funded
-Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio
(b) (b-a) (alb)
Police Pension
$ 46,310,766  $ 30,284,411 34.61%
Not Available
43,257,835 29,236,588 32.41%
40,991,744 28,359,743 30.82%
39,273,366 23,603,365 39.90%
37,715,990 20,888,087 44.62%
36,536,908 20,205,554 44.70%
34,708,648 19,423,386 44.04%
Fire Pension
$ 50,248,085 $ 32,854,273 34.62%
Not Available

45,691,321 29,055,005 36.41%
45,449,959 30,103,533 33.77%
43,281,975 24,546,968 43.29%
39,539,794 20,467,665 48.24%
37,325,323 18,780,208 49.69%
35,220,804 18,000,582 48.89%

45

UAAL asa
Percentage
Covered of Covered
Payroll Payroll
() ((b-a)/c)
$ 3,967,820 763.25%
3,721,923 785.52%
3,470,340 817.20%
3,328,974 709.03%
2,961,777 705.26%
2,741,223 737.10%
2,699,133 719.62%
$ 3,786,805 867.60%
3,804,240 763.75%
3,597,302 836.84%
3,493,965 702.55%
3,126,964 654.55%
2,924,371 642.20%
2,733,551 658.51%



Actuaria
Valuation
Date

12/31/2012
12/31/2011
12/31/2010

CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF ILLINOISMUNICIPAL RETIREMENT
FUNDING PROGRESS
APRIL 30, 2013

Actuarial Accrued UAAL asa

Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage

Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payrall Payrall
@ (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)ic)

13,439,757 18,237,451 4,797,694 73.69% 6,067,708 79.07%
12,729,295 17,965,628 5,236,333 70.85% 5,820,337 89.97%
13,704,390 17,917,444 4,213,054 76.49% 5,876,269 71.70%

On amarket value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2012 is $14,022,711. On amarket basis, the
funded ratio would be 76.89%.

The actuarial value of assets and accrued liability cover active and inactive members who have service credit with City of

Granite City. They do not include amounts for retirees. The actuarial liability for retirees is 100% funded.
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Certificates of Deposit
Investments
Receivables:

Intergovernmental

Other
Due From Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities;
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Tota Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Drug Traffic Prevention
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

APRIL 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds Total
Drug Motor Non-Major
Traffic Community Fud Tax Capital Governmental
Prevention Devel opment Fund Total Projects Debt Service Funds
$ 175593 $ - % - $ 175593 $ - % - $ 175,593
34,747 - - 34,747 - - 34,747
113,398 - - 113,398 - - 113,398
- 13,054 51,333 64,387 - - 64,387
- - - - 10,484 - 10,484
$ 323738 % 13,054 $ 51,333 $ 388,125 $ 10,484 $ - $ 398,609
12,390 - 193,914 206,304 1,965 - 208,269
245,350 13,054 1,775,900 2,034,304 240,943 - 2,275,247
257,740 13,054 1,969,814 2,240,608 242,908 - 2,483,516
65,998 - - 65,998 - - 65,998
- - (1,918,481) (1,918,481) (232,424) - (2,150,905)
65,998 - (1,918,481) (1,852,483) (232,424) - (2,084,907)
$ 323738 % 13,054 $ 51,333 $ 388,125 $ 10,484 $ - $ 398,609




Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Grants
Motor Fuel Tax
Fines and Forfeitures
Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
&
Expenditures:
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Debt Service
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers From (To) Other Funds
Total other Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds Total
Drug Motor Nonmajor
Traffic Community Fuel Tax Capital Governmental
Prevention Devel opment Fund Tota Projects Debt Service Funds
$ 131,106 $ 359,762 254,396 $ 745,264 $ - $ - $ 745,264
- - 792,337 792,337 - - 792,337
30,307 - - 30,307 - - 30,307
280 - - 280 29 - 309
1,750 - - 1,750 - - 1,750
163,443 359,762 1,046,733 1,569,938 29 - 1,569,967
- - - - 195,941 - 195,941
186,759 - - 186,759 - - 186,759
- 294,909 411,570 706,479 - - 706,479
- - - - - 642,166 642,166
- - 196,820 196,820 - - 196,820
186,759 294,909 608,390 893,238 195,941 642,166 1,928,165
(23,316) 64,853 438,343 676,700 (195,912) (642,166) (358,198)
(34,359) (64,853) - (99,212) - 642,166 542,954
(34,359) (64,853) 438,343 (99,212) - 642,166 542,954
(57,675) - 438,343 380,668 (195,912) - 184,756
123,673 - (2,356,824) (2,233,151) (36,512) - (2,269,663)
$ 65998 $ - % (1,918/481) $(1,852,483) $ (232424 % - $ (2,084,907)




CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

Operating Revenues:
Chargesfor Services
Total Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personal Services
Industrial Pretreatment
Billings and Collection
Sewer Collection
Solids Handling
BOD Treatment
Primary Treatment
General and Administrative
Dry Weather Pumping
Wet Weather Pumping
Other
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):

Investment Earnings

Grant Income

Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning
Restatement of Beginning - Net Postion (Note 22)

Net Position - Ending

Business Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Wastewater Sewer Total
Treatment System Enterprise
Plant Fund Funds
$ 2,837,137 $ 4,174,892 $ 7,012,029
2,837,137 4,174,892 7,012,029
2,753,296 - 2,753,296
- 98,340 98,340
- 122,915 122,915
- 797,358 797,358
551,713 - 551,713
224,660 - 224,660
31,662 - 31,662
212,462 - 212,462
173,727 - 173,727
102,611 - 102,611
167,320 - 167,320
580,271 230,832 811,103
4,797,722 1,249,445 6,047,167
(1,960,585) 2,925,447 964,862
63,111 428 63,539
- 533,502 533,502
(197,951) (74,678) (272,629)
(134,840) 459,252 324,412
(2,095,425) 3,384,699 1,289,274
5,499,654 11,120,615 16,620,269
(151,088) - (151,088)
$ 3,253,141 $ 14,505,314 $ 17,758,455
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF PLAN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

APRIL 30, 2013
Pension Trust Funds
Police Firemen Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 357,390 $ 235,316 $ 592,706
Investments and Certificates of Deposits 14,986,059 15,810,213 30,796,272
Receivables:
Property Taxes 738,856 738,856 1,477,712
Gaming Taxes 5,510 5,510 11,020
Accrued Interest 63,369 33,426 96,795
Total Assets 16,151,184 16,823,321 32,974,505
LIABILITIES
Liabilities - - -
Total Liabilities - - -
NET POSITION

Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

and Other Purposes $ 16,151,184 $ 16,823,321 $ 32,974,505
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

Pension Trust Funds

Palice Firemen Total
Additions
Contributions:
Employee Contributions $ 393211 $ 358,057 751,268
Employer Contributions:
Property Taxes 738,609 734,267 1,472,876
Video Gaming Tax 9,959 9,959 19,918
Replacement Taxes 262,527 266,868 529,395
Total Contributions 1,404,306 1,369,151 2,773,457
Investment Income;
Interest and Dividends 582,581 466,390 1,048,971
Net Realized/Unrealized Gain(Loss) on Investments 765,270 786,937 1,552,207
1,347,851 1,253,327 2,601,178
Less: Investment Expense (30,413) (65,609) (96,022)
Net Investment Income 1,317,438 1,187,718 2,505,156
Total Additions 2,721,744 2,556,869 5,278,613
Deductions:
Benefits Paid to Participants:
Service and Disability 1,862,518 2,280,746 4,143,264
Dependents 254,915 270,171 525,086
Contractual Services 18,491 13,151 31,642
Total Deductions 2,135,924 2,564,068 4,699,992
Changein Plan Net Position 585,820 (7,199) 578,621
Net Position - Beginning 15,565,364 16,830,520 32,395,884
Net Position - Ending $ 16,151,184 $ 16,823,321 $ 32,974,505
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUNDS
APRIL 30, 2013

TIF
TIF TIF TIF TIF TIF TIF TIF Debt
District #1 District #2 District #3 District #4 District #5 District #6  District #7 Total Service Tota
Assets
Cash $ - $ 37483 $ 145481 $ 62153 $ 165470 $ 54,018 $ 114714 $ 579319 $ - $ 579,319
Certificates of Deposit - 79,836 300,336 116,237 343,825 112,244 238,359 1,190,837 - 1,190,837
Restricted Investments - - - 114,191 - - 475,313 589,504 2,461,269 3,050,773
Investments - 7,807 29,370 11,367 33,623 10,977 23,310 116,454 - 116,454
Receivables:
Property Taxes 1,330,605 140,944 973,082 1,346,910 - 42,613 5,049,822 8,883,976 - 8,883,976
Intergovernmental Receivable - - - - 25,758 - 147,882 173,640 - 173,640
Devel opment Loans 300,537 - - - - - - 300,537 - 300,537
Accrued Interest 3,255 - - 712 1,402 458 1,071 6,898 - 6,898
Due from Other Funds - - - - 2,760 - - 2,760 - 2,760
Rental Real Estate Investment 2,667,631 - - - - - - 2,667,631 - 2,667,631
Genera Real Estate Investment 1,308,191 - - 76,885 - - - 1,385,076 - 1,385,076
Total Assets 5,610,219 266,070 1,448,269 1,728,455 572,838 220,310 6,050,471 15,896,632 2,461,269 18,357,901
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 4,285 - - - 3,784 73 - 8,142 - 8,142
Due to Other Funds 1,560,220 - - 12,480 - - - 1,572,700 - 1,572,700
Due to Other Governments - - - - 2,760 - - 2,760 - 2,760
Deferred Revenues:
Gain on Sale of Property 173,033 - - - - - - 173,033 - 173,033
Property Taxes 1,330,605 140,944 973,082 1,346,910 - 42,613 5,049,822 8,883,976 - 8,883,976
Total Liabilities 3,068,143 140,944 973,082 1,359,390 6,544 42,686 5,049,822 10,640,611 - 10,640,611
Fund Balance:
Restricted for:
Debt Service - - - - - - - - 2,461,269 2,461,269
Devel opment Loans 300,537 - - - - - - 300,537 - 300,537
Redevel opment 2,241,539 125,126 475,187 369,065 566,294 177,624 1,000,649 4,955,484 - 4,955,484
Total Fund Balance 2,542,076 125,126 475,187 369,065 566,294 177,624 1,000,649 5,256,021 2,461,269 7,717,290

Total Liabilitiesand Fund Balance ~ $ 5,610,219 $ 266,070 $ 1,448269 $ 1,728455 $ 572,838 220,310 6,050,471  $15,896,632 $ 2,461,269  $18,357,901
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

TIF
TIF TIF TIF TIF TIF TIF TIF Debt
District #1 District #2 District #3 District #4 District #5 District #6 District #7 Total Service Total

Revenues:.

Property Taxes $ 1243640 $ 130,854 $ 920,252 $ 1,307,131 $ 222429 $ 24724 $ 4664412 $ 8513442 % - $ 8513442

Intergovernmental - - - - 107,530 - 30,010 137,540 - 137,540

Investment Earnings 19,490 - - 11,570 1,066 296 6,864 39,286 - 39,286

Miscellaneous 302,617 - - - - - - 302,617 - 302,617

Total Revenues 1,565,747 130,854 920,252 1,318,701 331,025 25,020 4,701,286 8,992,885 - 8,992,885

Expenditures:

General Government 278,125 130,854 690,189 189,911 113,858 1,930 4,042,910 5,447,777 - 5,447,777

Debt Service - Interest - - - - - - - - 1,314,217 1,314,217

Debt Service - Principal - - - - - - - - 1,185,000 1,185,000

Bond Issuance Costs - - - - - - - - 351,609 351,609

Capital Outlay - - - - - - 397,878 397,878 - 397,878

Total Expenditures 278,125 130,854 690,189 189,911 113,858 1,930 4,440,788 5,845,655 2,850,826 8,696,481

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 1,287,622 - 230,063 1,128,790 217,167 23,090 260,498 3,147,230 (2,850,826) 296,404
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Refunding Bonds Issued - - - - - - - - 9,820,000 9,820,000
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent - - - - - - - - (10,977,265) (10,977,265)
Bond Premium - - - - - - - - 186,580 186,580
Operating Transfers From (To) other Funds  (1,308,351) - - (1,321,561) - - (433,913) (3,063,825) 2,847,053 (216,772)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,308,351) - - (1,321,561) - - (433,913) (3,063,825) 1,876,368 (1,187,457)
Net Change in Fund Balance (20,729) - 230,063 (192,771) 217,167 23,090 (173,415) 83,405 (974,458) (891,053)
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,562,805 125,126 245,124 561,836 349,127 154,534 1,174,064 5,172,616 3,435,727 8,608,343
Fund Balance - Ending $ 2542076 $ 125126 $ 475187 $ 369,065 $ 566,294 $ 177624 $ 1000649 $ 5256021 $ 2461269 $ 7,717,290




Hughes & Associates

Certified Public Accountants, P.C.

1321 D’Adrian Professional Park 618-466-6278
Godfrey, IL 62035 Fax 618-466-8663

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT

To the Honorable Mayor and
City Council of the City of
Granite City, lllinois

We have audited the basic financial statementkeofity of Granite City, Illinois for the year erdi@pril 30, 2013,
and have issued our report thereon dated Decen8h@013. The financial statements are the respiitygiof the
City of Granite City, Illinois’ management. Oursponsibility is to express an opinion on the finahstatements
based on our audit.

Our audit was made in accordance with auditingdsteds generally accepted in the United States oérkaa.

Those standards require that we plan and perfoematidit to obtain reasonable assurance about wh#tibe
financial statements are free of material misstatgm An audit includes examining, on a test basigdence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fishstatements. An audit also includes assegbim@ccounting
principles used and significant estimates made Agagement, as well as evaluating the overall filghistatement
presentation. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

The management of the City of Granite City, lllisdé responsible for the government’s compliandé Veiws and
regulations. In connection with our audit, refert® above, we selected and tested transactiongemads to
determine the government's compliance with Statdllifois Public Act 85-1142, “An Act in Relationot Tax
Increment Financing”. We also relied on the assestimade by the TIF District administrator.

The results of our tests indicate that for the gdeasted, the City of Granite City, lllinois, conga with Subsection
(q) of Section 11-74.4-3 of Public Act 85-1142. thing came to our attention that caused us to xelilkat, for the
items not tested, the City of Granite City, Illisoias not in compliance with Subsection (q) of Bect1-74.4-3 of
Public Act 85-1142.

This report is intended solely for the informatiand use of management, others within the organizathe City
Council and the lllinois Department of Revenue @ndot intended to be and should not be used byprapther
than these specified parties.

B (oo 64 PC

Hughes & Associates, CPA, P.C.
December 18, 2013
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Hughes & Associates
Certified Public Accountants, P.C.

1321 D’Adrian Professional Park 618-466-6278
Godfrey, IL 62035 Fax 618-466-8663

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL CBR FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT © FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITHGOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
City Council of the City of
Granite City, lllinois

We have audited, in accordance with the auditimnddrds generally accepted in the United StateAnoérica and the
standards applicable to financial audits containe@overnment Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, the financial statements of the gowental activities, the business-type activitieach major fund , and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the CityGranite City, lllinois, as of and for the year eddApril 30, 2013, and the
related notes to the financial statements, whidlectively comprise the City of Granite City’s badinancial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated Decembel013, 2

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the finarcstatements, we considered the City of Granity, liinois’ internal
control over financial reporting (internal contrad) determine that audit procedures that are apjatepin the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on thantial statements, but not for appropriate in ¢meumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectisemd the City of Granite City, lllinois’ internabntrol. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness o€Ciheof Granite City, Illinois’ internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a conto&sdnot allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned tions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatgsnen a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficienci@s,internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of thatgistfinancial statements will not be preventeddetected and corrected on a
timely basis. Asignificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencigsjnternal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enoughetit mttention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for timited purpose described in the first paragrapkhef section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internahtrol over financial reporting that might be makweaknesses or, significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intat control that we consider
to be material weaknesses. However, material wessdas may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance abouthwhehe City of Granite City, lllinois’ financiadtatements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of itagl@nce with certain provisions of laws, regulagp contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could havérecdand material effect on the determination iafiicial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compl&rwith those provisions was not an objective of audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinione fdsults of our tests disclosed no instances nE€ompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported u@sernment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to descrileegtope of our testing of internal control and cliemge and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the aifeness of the entity’s internal control or on gdiance. This report is an
integral part of the audit performed in accordamdth Government Auditing Sandards in considering the entity’s internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this commuation is not suitable for any other purpose.

\;\*xm + Qosseatos aph P.C.
Hughes & Associates, CPA, P.C.

Godfrey, Illinois

December 18, 2013
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Hughes & Associates

Certified Public Accountants, P.C.
1321 D’Adrian Professional Park 618-466-6278
Godfrey, IL 62035 Fax 618-466-8663

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACMAJOR PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMEIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and
City Council of the City of
Granite City, lllinois

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Granite City, lllinoisdmpliance with the types of compliance requiretmatescribed in the
OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect athe# the City of Granite City’s
major federal programs for the year ended April 3013. The City of Granite City, Illinois’ majoederal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results gatof the accompanying schedule of findings anestjoned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with #guirements of laws, regulations, contracts, armhtgrapplicable to its
federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on cbamge for each of the City of Granite City, Illisdmajor federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requents referred to above. We conducted our afdiiompliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally aedejt the United States of America; the standapgsi@able to financial
audits contained iGovernment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Uniteaté&t and OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabmassurance about whether noncompliance witkyfies of compliance
requirements referred to above that could haverecdand material effect on a major federal progmourred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence atheuCity of Granite City, lllinois’ compliance witthose requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considezeéssary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonablis fasour opinion on compliance for each majorefied program. However,
our audit does not provide a legal determinatiothefCity of Granite City, lllinois’ compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City of Granite City, lllinoisomplied, in all material respects, with the typégompliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and mahteffect on each of its major federal programsthe year ended April 30,
2013.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the City of Granite City, lllinoisrissponsible for establishing and maintaining effecinternal control over

compliance with the types of compliance requirerseeterred to above. In planning and performingaudit compliance, we

considered the City of Granite City, Illinois’ imteal control over compliance with the types of riegments that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federalgpam to determine the auditing procedures thatappropriates in the

circumstances for the purpose of expressing ari@pion compliance for each major federal prograuh tantest and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance V@ttiB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of esgsing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compimn Accordingly, we do not express an opinion lom effectiveness of the
City of Granite City, lllinois’ internal control @ar compliance.
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a contuglr @ompliance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal coofrperforming their assigned functions, to preyentdetect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirentdrat federal program on a timely basis.material weaknessin internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencigsjnternal control over compliance, such that ther
reasonable possibility that material noncompliandh a type of compliance requirement of a fedgnaigram will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timabisb Asignificant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, iteimal control over compliance with a type of coiapte requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a matgeakness in internal control over compliance,iggtortant enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over ctiemre was for the limited purpose described infttet paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficies in internal control over compliance thathmhige material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. We did not identifsyadeficiencies in internal control over compliartbat we would consider to
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknagsxist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control osempliance is solely to describe the scope oftesting of internal control

over compliance and the results of that testingtas the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. éwatingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Hugia + Casseiate o 0, PC

Hughes & Associates, CPA, P.C.
Godfrey, Illinois
December 18, 2013
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

Federal
CFDA Pass-Through
Federal Grantor and Program Title Number Agreement Number Grantor Number Federal Expenditures
Cash Non-Cash

Cluster:
Highway Safety Cluster - Department of Transportation
Pass-through Program From
I1linois Department of Transportation
20.600,
Sustained Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP) 20.601 OP2-2305-219 $ 13,869 -

Total Highway Safety Cluster 13,869 -

State-Administered CDBG Cluster - Department of Housing and Urban Development
Pass-through Program From
I1linois Department of Transportation
County of Madison
CDBG IKE 14.228 08-354074 #08-354074

311,861

Total State Administered CDBG Cluster

311,861

Other Federal Awards:

Department of Justice
Direct Programs:
Equitable Sharing of Federally Forfeited Property 16.922 N/A 171,970 -
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant
ARRA - COPS Hiring Recovery Program Grant 16.710 2009RKWX0333 72,495 -
Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force State
and Local Overtime and Authorized Expense/
Strategic Intiative Programs 16.111 SI-WC-005 3,044 -
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforecement (ICE)  16.606 N/A 615 -

Total Department of Justice Direct Programs 248,124 -

Department of Homeland Security
Direct Programs:
Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program 97.044 :MW-2008-FO-04034 1,273 -

Pass-through Program From
I1linois Emergency Management Agency
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 N/A 5,001 -

Total Department of Homeland Security 6,274 R

Environmental Protection Agency
Pass-through Program From
Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
Infrastructure Financial Assistance Section -
The Water Pollution Control Loan Program 66.458 L174653/L174113 726,273 -

Total Environmental Protection Agency 726,273 -

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 994540 $ 311,861

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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NOTE 1.

NOTE 2.

NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED APRIL 30, 2013

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Fédavards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of the City of Granite City, Illinois undgrograms of the federal government for the yewmied
April 30, 2013. The information in this Schedutegresented in accordance with the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133,Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Because the
Schedule presents only a selected portion of tleeatipns of the City of Granite City, lllinois, ig not
intended to and does not present the financiaktipasichanges in net assets, or cash flows of thed®
Granite City, Illinois.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIGICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are repootedthe accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost gipies contained in OMB Circular A-87, Cost

Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Goweents, wherein certain types of expenditures ate n
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presknthere available.

Noncash Assistance, Federal Insurance and LoansfGoarantees

The City did not receive any federal insurancediay of its programs for the year ended April 30120
The City received noncash assistance from the QoahtMadison for payment of expenses on the
CDBG IKE grant of $311,861. The City has receivedns from lllinois Environmental Protection
Agency as of April 30, 2013.

INSURANCE

The City of Granite City had no insurance specificeequired by federal awards.

SUBRECIPIENTS

The City did not pass through any federal fundsulorecipients during the year ended April 30, 2013.
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CITY OF GRANITE CITY, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
APRIL 30, 2013

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

a. The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opimin the financial statements of the City.

b.

C.

No material weaknesses were disclosed by the afithie financial statements of the City.
No significant deficiencies relating to the audittee financial statements of the City were repirte

No instances of noncompliance material to the fingnstatement of the City were disclosed during
the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the auditlee major federal award programs are reportetién
financial statements of the City.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the majadei@l award programs for the City expresses an
unqualified opinion on all major federal programs.

The audit did not disclose any audit findings the required to be reported under Section .51#(a) o
OMB Circular A-133.

The City’s program tested as a major program iretiadhe Public Safety Partnership and Community
Policing Grants — CFDA #16.710; the Equitable Sigrof Federally Forfeited Property — CFDA
#16.922; the Water Pollution Control Loan ProgranCFDA #66.458; and CDBG IKE — CFDA
#14.228.

The threshold for distinguishing between Type A @aggde B programs was $300,000.

The City does not qualify as a low-risk auditee@m8ection .530 of OMB Circular A-133.

2. FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

The City has no findings to the financial stateteethat are required to be reported in accordarite w
Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards.

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — MAJOR FEDERAL AWARPROGRAMS AUDIT

The City has no findings or questioned costs fatefal award programs that are required to be regort
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